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NETWORK

TRINIDAD & TOBAGO

TRINRE Insurance
Company Ltd.

Port of Spain
69 Edward Street

Arima
22A King Street

Chaguanas

62 Mulchan Seuchan Road

San Fernando
8-10 Gordon Street

Tobago

Unit 4, Milford Bay Plaza,
5 Milford Road, Bon Accord

GUYANA

PREMIER Insurance
Company Inc.

GEGI’gEtGWH

Lot 68 High Street,
Kingston

Berbice

Lot 20 Nigg Public Road,
Corentyne
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ABOUT TRINRE

TRINRE was founded 47 years ago and it has developed into one of Trinidad and
Tobago's most dynamic and progressive composite insurance companies. |Its
establishment was a crucial catalyst in the development of the local insurance
industry, and it played a significant advisory role to the Insurance Regulatory Authority
of Trinidad and Tobago in areas of legislative and market conduct issues. TRINRE has
steadily flourished into a leading Cari A Rated composite insurer, well known for its
enterprising and foresightful leadership. The company’s success is premised on a
sturdy architecture that encompasses strong Corporate Governance, revenue
diversification, employee development, technological innovations, and also
excellence in customer experience.

This is further bolstered with solid relationships with ‘A’ rated reinsurers and
intermediaries who contribute to the company’s development and distribution of an
expending range of Group Life and General Insurance products and services that
support the economies and customers served.

TRINRE's expansion into Guyana, through its subsidiary PREMIER Insurance Company

Inc., has brought new business opportunities for growth and partnerships that bring
mutual benefits for both Guyana and Trinidad and Tobago.
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VISION & VALUES

Our Core PUI'POSE Our Values

To enable greater prosperity « RESPECT
for those we serve.
* HONOUR

« PASSION

Our Vision

To be the most respected and admired company built on an enduring foundation of
financial health grounded in strong Corporate Governance and citizenship, fueled by
innovation, passion and talent.

To gain leadership in the markets we serve, by surpassing the expectations of our
customers and consistently honouring our obligations.

To be recognized for our social conscience by supporting the well being of our
colleagues, environment and communities.

Our Guiding Principles
We believe that:

*  Our customers determine our success.

+ Each day has new possibilities.

+ Continuous learning and self-mastery will keep us ahead of the competition.

+  We must navigate change with strength, courage, innovation, talent and discipline.

* lLong-term relationships are built on integrity, high credibility, mutual respect and
honour.

Profit and growth are our measures of success and the means to fulfill our
obligations to customers, shareholders, reward our employees and meet other
objectives.
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EREBE A
Chairrman
Appolnted 220601

Executive MBA, FCCA
Independant Director
Appointed 251111

MEBA, FCCA
Independant Director
Appointed 25.07.22
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

She currently serves as a Director of the JN Group of Companies Limited and
President of the Bocas Lit Fest, o very successful not-for-profit company.

RANI LAKHAN-NARACE

Rani Lakhan-Narace has amassed an inmpressive record of prowess in both the
retail ond financial services sectors. Her distinguished leadership haos led to her
appointment on several Boards, ond with o keen interast in societal and hurman
development, Mrs. Lakhan-Narace has often extended her stewardship to a wide
breadth of organisations.

She currently serves as o Director of the JN Group of Companies Limited and
President of the Bocas Lit Fest a very successful not-for-profit company. She
serves as the Immediote Post President of The International Wormen's Forum
(WFTT) and recent Chairmon of the Transparency, Accountability, and
Governance (TAS) Committee of The American Choamber of Commerce of
Trinidod ond Tobogo. She is o Post President of the Associotion of Trinidad and
Tobago Insurance Companies (ATTICY and has also served on the Board of the
Insurance Association of the Caribbeon (IAC} and the Caoribbeon Corpoote
Governance Institute (Coal,

Har professional cceomplishments are supported by her academic achizvements,
holding both an Executive Master's dagrae in Business Administration and a Post
Muasters of Business Administration (MB&) certificate from the Arthur Lok Jack
Groduate School of Business, UWI, as well as a Diploma in Corporate Governance
from the Caribbean Corporate Governance Institute.

HOWARD A. DOTTIN

Howard Dottin has over forty years of finance and accounting exparience through

servics In both the public and private sector. Having hald the posts of Chisf Financial
Officer in the banking sector and C-Level experience as Group Chief Financial Officer
of one of the lorgest insuronce conglomaratas in the Caribbean region, Mr. Dottin's
proficlency ls Incontestable,

Kir. Dottin is o chartared accountant who also holds o Masters degrea in Business
Administration with o specialization in Marketing and Finance and has genaroushy
shared his wealth of knowledge and experience through lecturing in accounting and
af the post-graduate level to students of the MBA and MSC in Finance. He currenthy
serves as 4 Director on companies’ boards in both the public and private sectors,
and continues to provide lectures via various professicnal institutions.

MONICA LA BENNETT

Ms. Monica La Bennett, o Guyonese citizen, is a former Vice-President of Operations
of tha Carlbbaan Development Bank, providing leadership to the operating areas of
the Bonk including Projects, tconomics, Corporote  Strategy, Renswable
Energy/Energy Efficiency, Public-Private Partnership, and the Special Development
Fund — CDE's largest pool of concessionary resources. she joined the CDE in 2004
and functioned as Chisf Policy Analyst and Deputy Director in the Corporats Planning
Division until her promation to Vice Prasident. Prior to joining the Bank, Ms. Lo Bennett
operatad o financial managemeant consultancy, Signature Management Systermns;
served as Chief Executive Officer/Director/Secretary of the New Building Society
(MBS} of Guyona; and os the Corporate Services Manager of the Caribbean
Agricultural Ressarch and Devaloprnant Institute (CARDY In Trinldad and Tobago.

She has also served on the Boards of Directors of local and internoticnal insuranca
companies, o remittanca senvices company, and hald senior positions in the regional
Licns Club International

Ms. La Bennett is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK
(FeeA) and holds o Master's dagree in Business Administration = International
Business (with distinction) from the University of Bradford in the United Kingdom.



DEREK P. MITCHELL

Carek hitchell is the prncipol associaote of Kainder Lirited, a maonagement
consultancy firm in Trinidad and Tobago which provides financial advisory services
to small and medium-sized companies in various industries.

He iz o qualified Certified Accountant and is o Fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA), ond a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Trinidod & Tobago (ICATT..

He has Bean engaged in the audit of large multinatienal companies and saveral
large publichy guoted cormpanies while working for the larger audit firms in Trinidad
and Tobago. Whilst in London, England, he worked on small and micro businesses
and several medium-sized enterprises covering a wide range of industrias,
k. Mitchell has reviewed and developed o wide range of complionce and
governance policies and has made presentations to staff ond Boards of Directors
on Anti-Money Laundering, Insurance Accounting, and Central Bank reparting.
IAr, Mitchell currently holds several directorships and has sat on Boards involved
in financial services and educatlon for several years,

RYAN PROUDFOOT

Ryan Proudfoot holds a Bachelor of arts Degree {with Honours) In Accounting from
the University of Kent at Canterbury, UK and o Masters of Business Administration in
Intarnational Managamant from the University of Eveter, UK.

Mr. Proudfoot has a highly successtful career in banking, holding the positions of
Genaral Manager, BME Finance & Trust Corporotion and General Manoger, BME
Treasury with Barbados Mational Bank Ine. (renamed Republie Bank (Barbados)
Limited; and a subsidiary of Republic Bank Limited).

M. Froudfoot joined BNE after serving ds Business Head and vics President, Citlcorp
Merchont Bonk Limited (Barbados Branch) where he was responsible for the
re-establishment of Citibank in Barbodes. He was appointed to the Board of First
Cltizens Bank Limited on July 3, 2014 and subsequently as Chalrman of the Board of
First Citizens Investrnent Services (Borbados) Limited and First Citizens Brokerage
and Advisory Servicez Umited, and a Director on the Boards of First Citizens
Investment Services Limited, First Cltizens Bank (Barbados) Limited and First Cltizens
Portfolio and Investment Management Services Limited.

SEAN AYOUNG

Sean Ayoung currently holds the position of Chief Executive Officer at TRINRE. He
joined tha company in 2021 as the Chiaf Oparating Officer, whara he wos rasponsibla
for ensuring that the company’s operational infrastructure were in line with its
strategic objectives.

His experience in flnancial managsment within the insurance sector spans over
eighteen years and his wide knowledge extends the breadth of key management
arecs.

VINAI NARACE

Vinal Narace has over twalve years of experiencea in both Trinidad and Tobago and
Canoda in the oreocs of Business Manocgement, General Insurance, Information
Technaology, Marketing, and Project Management.

He currently holds the position of Marketing and Customer Experience Manager,
leading engoing brand and customer experience initiotives as well as corporate
communications and Corporate Social Responsibility. He also is responsible for the
development of robust Governance, IT, and Operotional systems for the effective
management of shared services throughout the Group. He sits on the Board of the JM
Group of Companies Limited, the parent of TRINRE, as well as a number of its other
subsidiaries.
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CHAIRMAN'S
MESSAGE

It is with o sense of satisfaction and optirism that |
present the Chairrmon’s Messoge for TRINRE's 2023
Annual Report,

Cwer the past yoear, the global sconomy has moved
away frem erisis-driven policymaking inte a phase of
guarded post-COVID recavery. Yet, the tronsition hos
been uneven o inflationary pressures persisted
throughout 2023, prompting major central banks to
maintain tight monetary policies. These actions, while
nacessary to stabilize prices, hove constrained global
guidity, curbed Investment appatits, and Infroduced
wolatility across financial markets. According to the
Intemational Monetary Fund, global GDOF growth
declined from 25% in 2022 to 3.0% in 2023, with
commaodity  shocks, rising debt burdens, and
geopalitical uncertainty—most notably the protracted
Russig-Ukraine conflict—turther compounding market
instability.

These global headwinds had o npple effect on most
aconomies including Trinidad and Tobogo as it
continuad on its own path of maasurad recoveary. Real

GDPF growth was estimoted ot 27% for 2023, with
notable resilience from the mon-energy sector, which
expanded by 4.2% during the first quarter. The energy
sector, by contrast, posted marginal growth of just
0.3%, reflecting ongoing structural chaollenges that clso
contributed to a persistent foreign exchange reserves
declinz. Inflation, while declining slightly from its 2022
peak, remnained elevoted at an averags of 6.8%. The
Central Bank of Trnidad and Tobago, in response,
rmaintained o cautious stance while advancing several
requlatory initiotives aimed ot ensuring greater
cansumer protection, increased oybersecurity, and
overall financial stability, particularly  within  the
insurance sector.

Amid this environment, TRINRE distinguished itself with
robust and strotegicaolly drven financiol ond
cperational performance for the year ending March 3],
2023, We recorded Profit Before Tax of $13.0 million and
Profit After Tox of 3112 milion, reflecting prudent
undarwriting  and  Investrment  strategies. Our
imvestment portfolio delivered o return of 37%,
outperforming international benchmarks even amidst
global uncertainty, We continued to optimize asset
allocation to preserve capital and generate value.
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Operationally, we deepened our commiitment to
customer service ond digital transtorrnation. The
successful implementation of the second phase of our
core claims and policy administration system hos
already led to measurable improvements in
turnaround  times, ftronsporency, and custormer
satisfaction. We also remained IFRS 17-ready, making
significant progress in actuaricl modelling, policy
sagmentation, and internal governance systems to
ensure full compliance,

Our Enterprise Risk Maonogerment framework wos
enhanced to reflect the new regulatory landscape and
emerging rsks, including climmote-related exposure,
cyber threats, and global reinsurance capacity
constraints. Throughout, our strategic reinsurance
partnerships provided an essantiol layer of security for
our customers and confidence for our stakeholders.

TRINREs long-term regional vision is well under way.
Our subsidiary, Premier Insurance Compary Inc. in
Guyana, continues to grow from strength to strength,
benefiting from the country's rapid GOP growth and the
increasing dermand for insurance solutions. 'With a
local team and progressive leadership, Premier is well
positicned as a major player in one of the Caribbeon’s
most dynamic markets.

89 | TRINRE 2
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our achlevements would not be possible without our
people. | extend my sincere thanks to our newly
appointed CEOQ, Sean Ayoung, and the entire TRINRE
team—whose  professionalism, adaptability, ond
commitment to excellence continue to define our
company. | am also deeply grateful to our Board of
Directars for its oversight and counsel, and to our
valued custormers, reinsurers, intermediaries,
regulators, and shareholders for their ongoing trust. |
must also poy tribute to Messrs. Anthony Proudfoot,
Michoel Quamina and Adrian Bharath for their past
contributions to the Board aond welcorme Ms. Monica Lo
Bennett, Mr. Derek Mitchell, and kr. Ryan Proudfoot as
they bring their prowess ond insightfulness to our
deliberations.

As we look to the year oheod, we do so with confidence,
anchored by our strong capital base, disciplined
strategy, and endurng purpose. Together, we will
continue to enoble greater prosperity for those we
sene.

-7
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CEO’'S
STATEMENT

To Our Shareholders

It is o privilege to prasent the Chief Executive Officars
Report of TRINRE Insurance Company Limited (TRINRE},
along with the consalidated financial results of TRINRE
and its subsidiary, Premiar Insurance Company Inc.
("the Group"), for the financial year ended March 31,
2023.

This past year was influenced by a myrad of
challanges and opportunitias, both in our local markat
of Trinldad and Tobago and in Guyand, whare our
subsidiary is domiciled. We continued to cperate
against the backdrop of the ongoing post-COVID-19
recovery, while navigating external pressuras including
global geopelitical tensions, stock market volatility, and
rising interast ratas.

Domestically, the insurance sector foced a
transformative period as the industny adapted to tha
provisions of the Insurance Act 2018 {as omended),
and the suite of new regulations ond guidelines that
accompanied its proclamation effective January 1,
2021 Insurers, Including TRIMRE, were also called to
meet evolving customer expectotions, marked by
increcsing owareness, scruting, and demand  for
service quality and transparency. The upcoming
adoption of the IFRS 17 Insurance Controcts standard

added further complexity, placing additional financial
and operational demands on the industry. | am
plecased to report that the Group is fully prepaored for
this transktion and well-positioned to provide accurate,
timely, and compliont reporting geoing forward.

Financial Results

The Group's core insurance business delivered a strong
performance, with net results  from  underwrlting
activities increasing from $44.5 millicn in 2022 to $54.6
million in 2023—an improvement of $101 million, or
225%. This woas underpinned by growth in Met
Premiumns Written, which rose by 23.4% from $459
million to $56.6 milion Additionally, reinsurance
commissions increased from $27.8 million to $361
million in 2023, reflecting exponced reinsurance
cassions during the period.

Despite this operaticnal strength, Group profit after tox
declined to $11.4 million from $23.9 million in the prior
vear—a decraase of §126 million or 52.4%. Profit before
tox was $16 milicn cormpared to $25.9 million in 2022,
This decrease was primarily driven by o reduction in
net investment results, which fell by $14.1 million or
78.4%—frorm $17.8 million to $3.7 million.
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Monetheless, the Group continued to strengthen its
financial position. Total asssts increased by $10.2
rillion or 3.3%, from $3065 million to $316.6 million.
Ehareholders” equity also rose by 1.2 million or 10.4%,
reaching $118.5 million as ot March 21, 2023,

TRINRE

Throughout the year, TRIMRE remained focused on
dalivering reliaoble service, strong products, ond
tailorad solutions in o demanding environment, The
Company continued to benefit from increased
reinsurance capacity through our A-rated partners
and leveraged its advanced ICT infrastructure and
sound governance to maintain operational excellence.
Daspite parsistant foreign axchonge challenges, TRIMRE
ensured timsly settlement of abligations to its valusd
reinsurers.

TRIMRE's Insurance operations continuad to grow, with
net results of $42.2 million—an increase of $2.2 million
or 5.4% over the previous year, Profit before tax was $11.6
rrllllen, while profit ofter tax was $10 milllon—both
reflecting declines of B2I1% and 56.2%, respectively.
These results were largely due to a decling in
Investrment portfolio performancs, which decreased by
£126 million or 73.9%—from $171 milion to $45
rillion—driven by raalised and unrealized lossas over
the perlod.

Fovourably, Sharehalders” Equity graw by $8 million or
g8.4%, supported by on  additonal  shareholders
investrment of $7 millicn during the year.

Premier

Premier Insurance Company Inc. recorded o strong
performnance for the financial year ended December 31,
2022 This was supported by comprehensive quota
share reinsuronce  orrangerments,  robust  (ICT
copabilities, and a continued emphasis on custorner
service excellence,

N | TRINRE 2023 ANMNUAL REPORT

The Company reported profits before and aofter tox of
$3.4 milion and $1.2 million respectively—compared to
$1.7 millicn and $1.0 million in the prior year. These
improved results were driven by growth in Gross Written
Prerniums, which increassd by $26 milion or 166%.
Underwriting results alsc rose significantly, from $4.5
mitllion to $12.4 rmillion yvear-on-year,

Outlook

Management remains optimistic about the future of the
Group. We onticipate continued growth in koth Trinidad
and Tobago and Guyana, with the lotter poisad for
acceleroted expansion gs s 2conomy gains
momentum. TRINRE is strategically positioned to take
advantage of its competitive reinsurance capacity and
disciplined undearwriting approach.

In addition, we are actively evaluating opportunities for
further growth—both within our existing morkets and
ccross the brooder region. Ve look forward to sharing
mora with you, cur wvolued stokeholdars, as these
developments evolve,

Acknowledgements

| would like to extend sincere thanks to our customers,
reinsurance brokers, staff and monagement, Board of
Directors, and all stokeholders who contributed to the
Group's performance over the past financlal yvear.
Together, we hove built a strong foundation—ond |
ramain confident thot the opportunities ahead will be
even greater,

P Wi

SEAN AYOUNG
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance refers to the
human-based system by which an
organization is directed, overseen and
held accountable for achieving its
defined purpose. This not only builds
trust but also improves business
performance and contributes to social
and environmental integrity. This,
therefore, requires that the relationships
among management, the Board,
shareholders, regulators and other
stakeholders foster a climate of
trustworthiness, transparency and
accountability. Corporate governance
also provides the structure through
which the objectives of the company
are set, and the means of attaining
those objectives and monitoring
performance are determined.

TRINRE recognizes the importance
of integrating sound corporate
governance principles into its business
practices to ensuring sustainable and
principled performance. The Company
iIs committed to ensure the profitable
growth and sustainability of the
organization, in order to generate value
for its stakeholders while balancing the
maximization of shareholders’ returns
with the protection of policyholders.
TRINRE engenders a culture where each
employee takes responsibility for his or
her actions and adopts an ownership
mindset. Its business ethics support its
obligation to build a principled
environment and uphold the highest
standards of business conduct,
honesty, and integrity.

The Company's performance during the
period April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023 is
featured in this Annual Report.

OUR GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Directors are elected by our
shareholders to provide the calibre of
leadership that optimizes sustainable
shareholder value and stakeholder
satisfaction.

Directors automatically retire from the
Board at each Annual Meeting and are
elected or re-elected (as the case may
be) by the shareholders at the
Company's Annual Meeting.

Our Board continues its firm commitment
to maintaining the highest standards of
corporate governance. To this end, there
is continuous monitoring and updating,
as necessary, of TRINRE's internal
infrastructure to meet the increasingly
complex business environment.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Company's Board of Directors as at
March 31, 2023, consisted of seven (7)
Directors, with five (5) being
Non-Executive and Independent.

WHAT WE EXPECT OF OUR DIRECTORS

The Board comprises a team of
professionals that provides oversight on
the strategic direction and decisions
impacting TRINRE and its stakeholders.

Directors have fiduciary obligations
towards TRINRE and are expected to
perform their duties with trust,
confidence, and confidentiality, always
acting in the best interest of the
Company.

MMUAL REPORT
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Compliance with our governance
policies and framework ensures that the
Board remains aligned with our
corporate governance goals as well as
with all applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

Ultimately, the Board creates value for
the shareholders, employees, and
society as a whole.

THE BOARD'S CORE STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

SUBSIDIARY GOVERNANCE

The Board also provides oversight on our
subsidiary in Guyana that relates to the
achievement of goals and objectives,
enterprise  risk management and
compliance. The majority of our Directors
also forms part of our subsidiary Board to
ensure that there is a continuity of strong
governance and  strategic intent
throughout the Group.

The Board's principles of corporate governance provide a framework for the manner in
which it functions and discharges its responsibilities:

To set the strategic aims and to review
and approve corporate strategy

To ensure the Group has the
appropriate organizational structure in
place to achieve its objectives

To set and monitor an overall risk
appetite framework for the Group by
reviewing and approving systems of
risk management and internal
compliance and control and legal
compliance

To monitor the effectiveness of
corporate governance practices and to
update organizational rules and policies
in step with industry changes

To approve dnd monitor the progress of
major capital expenditure, capital
management, and acquisitions and
divestitures

To ensure the integrity of accounting,
financial and non-financial reporting

MEETING ATTENDANCE FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 1, 2022 TO MARCH 31, 2023

DIRECTOR AUDIT
COMMITTEE

Rani Lakhan-Narace 100%
Howard Dottin 100%
Monica La Bennett B60%
Derek Mitchell =

Ryan Proudfoot =
Sean Ayoung =

Vinai Narace =
Michael Quamina 40%
Adrian Bharath =
Anthony Proudfoot 40%

INVESTMEMT BOARD AMMUAL
COMMITTEE MEETING

5% 100% 100%
100% 100% 100%
= 60% 100%
5% 60% 100%
= 20% =

= 100% 100%
= 100% 100%
= = 100%
20% 40% 100%
50% 20% =

Changes to the Board of Directors during the period:

- Messrs Quamindg and Bharath retired from the Board on July 25, 2022

» Messrs La Bennett and Mitchell were appointed to the Board on July 25, 2022
« Mr. Anthony Proudfoot retired from the Board on November 2, 2022

+ Mr. Ryan Proudfoot was appointed to the Board on November 25, 2022
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REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE:

CHAIRMAN | Howard Dottin

MEMEBERS Monica La Bennett

Rani Lakhan-Narace

The Audit Committee of TRINRE meets
quarterly to review the Company's
management accounts, the system of
internal controls, the management of
financial risks, the audit process, and
the process for monitoring compliance
with laws and regulations. Five (5)
meetings were held during the financial
year, with a special meeting being held
to review the audited financial
statements.

REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE
INVESTMENT COMMITTEE:

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Rani Lakhan-MNarace

CHAIRMAN |
MEMBERS

Howard Dottin
Derek Mitchell

The Investment Committee of TRINRE
meets quarterly to review the
Company’'s investment activities and
monitor the performance of the
investment portfolio. The Committee is
responsible for overseeing the Group's
investment strategies and
performance, policies and guidelines.
Four (4) meetings were held during the
financial year.

FEES PAID TO THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The following is a statement of fees paid
to the external auditor for audit and
non-audit services during the financial
year (April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023):

FEES PAID

SERVICES
AUDIT $191,844.78
NON-AUDIT %0

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

TRINRE's Enterprise Risk Maonagement
(ERM)  framework articulates an
architecture that includes its risk
philosophy and appetite, risk structures
and processes, risk policies, risk
tolerances, and a regime of monitoring
existing and emerging risk exposures.
This is designed to continuously
strengthen the systems of internal
control and mitigate the identified risk
exposures in order to assure the
company's sustainability. During the
financial year, TRINRE continued to
successfully identify and address
emerging risks, thereby ensuring that
the organization continued to operate
effectively and profitably despite the
challenges that arose in the local,
regional, and global economic and
geopolitical landscapes.
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BUSINESS & COMMUNITY

HIGHLIGHTS

2 TRINRE BTRINRE FTRINRE B TRINRE
TRINRE  FTR G TRINRE omag TRINRE 3 T|

3 TRINRE RINRE TR Jj TRINRE

TRINRE BT
35 TRINRE 8 3 TRINRE
- r & i3 TRIMNR
RINRE ~ FThe B BTEE aTq

ﬁ'lmmmz a

;@TRINHE .J:
; @Tﬂﬁ 3 TRINRE

Marketing and Customer Experience Manager,
Vinai Marace — TRINRE (r) presents our contribution to
Mr. Mourice Edwards, President of the Bestham Gardens

IATF Folice Youth Club.,

& TRINRE 0§

B TRINRE g uTRINRE -w"i‘TRINRE
e\

RINRE 557 55 TRINA

35 TRINE

{I-r) Rugby Mer's Under 18 National Team coach, Jonathan
O'Connor receives a donagtion from Sean  Ayoung,
CEC-TRINRE, in support of tha team’s 2022 Rugby Amaricos.
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{I-r) Kids In Need of Direction (KIND) Director, Gregory
Farah cccepts a donation from Vinal Narace, Morketing
and Custormer Experience Manager — TRINRE.

Shelter
GFHNRE GTRINRE 35

35 TRINRERS

RINRE INRE

3 TRINRE

Fogiotts
ol m o

{I-r) Mrs. Sherron Harford, Vice Chairman of The Shelter,
accepts TRIMRE's donation from Marketing and Custormer
Exparience Mandger, Vinal Nardee,




BUSINESS & COMMUNITY
HIGHLIGHTS

hir. Jerry Maroce, Group Chairmnan shares o moment hMorketing and Customer Experience Monoger, Vinoi
with  Sadhgury ot SAVESOIL's “An  Evaning  with Marace, presents o donation to Revan Tealucksingh, who
Sodhguru®, accepted it on behalf of SEWATT.

ARE g3 TRINRE @TRll\h [~ s FTRINRE %

(I-r) Lella Compton, Assistant Finance Manager, makes {I-r} Debbie Goodman, Corporate Communications
o presentation to the Autistic Society of Trinidad ond Manager of MALS, accepts TRINRE's sponsorship for the
Tobago's Public Relations Officer, Dr. Sarah Soo Hon, ploy “For the lowe of Liberty” from Marketing and

Custormer Experience Manager, Vinal Narace.
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FINANCIAL
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STATEMENT OF

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES

TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Management is responsible for the following:

« Preparing and fairly presenting the accompanying financial statements of TRINRE
Insurance Company Limited and its subsidiary (the Group), which comprises the
consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information;

= Ensuring that the Group keeps proper accounting records;

» Selecting appropriate accounting policies and applying them in a consistent
manner;

» Implementing, monitoring and evaluating the system of internal control that
assures security of the Group’s assets, detection/prevention of fraud, and the
achievernent of the Group's operational efficiencies;

= Ensuring that the system of internal control operated effectively during the reporting
period;

+ Producing reliable financial reporting that complies with laws and regulations,
including the Companies Act; and

« Using reasonable and prudent judgement in the determination of estimates.

In preparing these audited financial statements, management utilized the International
Financial Reporting Standards, as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board, and adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Trinidad and Tobago.
Where International Financial Reporting Standards presented alternative accounting
treatments, management chose those considered most appropriate in the
circumstances.

Nothing has come to the attention of management to indicate that the Group will not
remain a going concern for the next twelve months from the reporting date, or up to the
date the accompanying financial statements have been authorized for issue, if later.
Management affirms that it has caried out its responsibilities as outlined above.

."..- 3
r.' h
_,Pf?r =
/

Sean Ayoung, Chief Executive Officer Kevin Matthews, Finance Manager
Date: June 25, 2023 Date: June 26, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

@ bakertilly

Opinion

We have audited the consclidated financial statements of TRINRE Insurance Company
Limited and its subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes,
comprising significant accounting policies and other expalnatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Group as at March 31, 2023, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Interntional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1sAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants including International Independence Standards (IESBA Code)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and with the [ESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Reponsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Compdnys ability to continue ds a going concern, disclosing, ds dpplicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's
financial reporting process.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtdin redsonable assurance about whether the financil
statements as a whole are free fromn material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Missstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonable be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevent to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions dre based on the audit
eveidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overdll presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significantly audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we indentify during our
audit.

z_; -
o e i
o O ¥ A el

.o
Chartered Accountants
Port of Spain

Trinidad and Tobago
June 26, 2023
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TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

MOTES 2023 2022
5 s

ASSETS
Froperty, plant and equipment 4 5,014,871 6,521,167
Right-of-use assets ] 12,524,272 . 16,738,127
Intangible azsets (51 6,414,990 | 7,280,869
Investment property 7 18,076,762 13,627,368
Investment securities a8 95,725,994 133,607,583
Relnsurance assets 10 78,570,311 | 75,286,308
Accounts receivable and prepayrnents 11 44 098,387 25,928,727
Due from related parties 12 1,681,821 | 1,908,733
Deferred acgquisition costs 8,686,624 7145079
Cash and cash equivalents 13 44,945,391 18,941,110
Total Assets 316,648,323 | 306,482,068
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Stated capital 14 22,500,000 22,500,000
Deposit on share copital 14 7,000,000 | =
Translation adjustment (208,109) (1,027,694)
Catastrophe fund 2 1,666,137 1,005,495
Retained earnings 87,532,009 | 84,831,573

118,490,037 | 107,308,374
LIABILITIES '
Bank overdraft 22 1,727,848 2,801,388
Insurance liabilities 15 140,145,294 | 137,808,631
Borrowings 16 7,500,000 1,200,000
Lease liabilities 5 13,680,432 | 17,538,982
Accounts payable 17 31,083,885 | 36,262,185
Due to related parties 12 = | 1,983,983
Taxation payable 2,621,809 2,464,293
Deferred tax liability 9 1,498,017 403,331

128,158,286 198,172,693
Total Equity and Liabilities 316,648,323 306,482,067

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The TRINRE Board of Directors authorised these financial statements for issue on 26th June, 2023,

Signed on behalf of the Board

e

Director

T
AN

Director
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TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Insurance activities

MOTES

2023

2022

Gross premium 18 180,539,583 240,858,972
Premium ceded to reinsurers (123,952,941) (195,0987,370)
Met premiums 56,586,652 45,861,602

~ Change in unearned premium reserve {4,000,071) (4,198,851
Earned premiums 52,586,581 41,663,091
Reinsurance commission income 18 36,131,758 27,786,101
Met underwriting revenue 88,718,340 69,449,192
Met benefits and claims (16,628,137) {10,236,077)
Policy acquisition expenses 18 (17,5537,567) (14,678,772)
Underwriting expenses (34,065,704) (24,91,849)
Met result from underwriting activities 54,552,636 44,537 343
Investing activities

_Investment and other income 5,634,555 2,953,465
Net realised (losses)/gains (2,115,075} 5,663,672
Fair value gains 156,408 89,314,716
Met income from investing activities 3,675,889 17,831,853
Net income from all activities 58,228,525 62,369,196
Operating expenses 19 (41,864,045) {36,060,448)
Finance charges 19 (1,350,848) (447,524)
Profit before taxation 15,013,632 75,861,223
Taxation 8 (3,881,169) (2,010,229}
Net profit for the year 11,352,463 23,850,984

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financlal statements.
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TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YEAR ENDED MARCH 231, 2023

Stoted

Deposit on

Cotastrophe  Tronslotion Retoined

Motes Capital Capital Resarve Reserve Eamings Taotal
$ $ § $ $
Balance at April 01, 2021 | 22,500,000 - | 48s490| (765280) 73,010,655 | 95233865
Met profit for the year | - - - -| 23,860,594 | 23,860,994
Dividends paid [24] - - -] - mszomy | (msiz0m)
B s - - T
Transfer to catastrophe ' - -| ®17,008] -1 (517,008) -
resernve | |
Balance at March 31, 2022 22,500,000 - | 1,005,495 | (1,027,694) | 84831573 | 107,309,374
Met profit for the year | = £ & - M352463 N,352.463
Deposit on share capital | 14 | -| 7,000,000 - - - | 7,000,000
Dividends paid 24 | - - - -1 (7.991386) | (7,091,385)
Translation resarve - - -| 819585 - 818,585
Transfer to catastrophe ' - - | 660642 -| (e60842)| -
reserve
Balance at March 31, 2023 | 22500,000 | 7,000,000 | 1666137 (208109) | 87,532,008 | 118,490,037

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these finanhcial statements.
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TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

MOTES 2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit befora tax | | 503632 | 25861223
Adjustments for specific items included on the accruals basis |
" Leaise interest e;{-pe nse EEE_} [ 4,235 222037
Investment and other income | | (5,634,655) (2,963,466)
adjustments for non-cash items 5,730,166 (3,180,362)

15,823,478 19,949,433

Change in insurance liabilities 2,229,937 B.5G67, 725
Change In operating investments 36,841,801 4,998,855
Change in reinsurance assets (3,211,000) (9,478158)
~ Net change in other operating asssts/liabilities || (25461,635) 1,851,631
Interest paid ; (500,756) (433,530)
Interest received | | 6,685,808 293718
Corporation taxes paid : (2,086,546) (2,193,293)
Net cash from operating activities 30,321,187 26,200,384

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment . (870,083) (1,520,688)
Purchase of investment property (3,090,160) (3,877,368)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 7,304 =
Purchase of intangible assets : (304,788) (99,638)
Net cash used in investing activities (4,057,710} (5,497,6082)

CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid 24 | (7,991,385) (1,513,071)
Contribution to copital 7,000,000 =
Payment of lease liability, net ; (4,084,272) (3,44312)
Proceeds from/f(Repayment of) borrowings 5,216,481 (10,913,128)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities : 140,804 (25,869,311
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 26,404,281 (5,66,619)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year/period | 18,541,110 23,707,729
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year/period 44,845,391 18,541,110

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONSOLIDATED)
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

1 Incorporation and Principal Activity

TRINRE Insurance Company Limiled (the Company) is a limiled liability company
incorporated on July 3, 1975 and domiciled in the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago. The
address of its registered office is 69 Edward Street, Port of Spain, The Company and its
subsidiary, Premier Insurance Company Inc. (the Group) is a subsidiary of JN Group of
Companies (formerly Investment Manapers Limited). which is incorporated and dommeiled in
Trinidad and Tobago.

The Group primarily underwrites non-life and group life imsurance risks, These products are
offered primarily to the domestic market.

2 Significant Accounting Policics

fa) Statement of compliance

These financial statemments have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS). as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. Whers
IFRS’s presented alternative accounting treatments, the most appropriate in the circumstances
were chosen.

These financial statements provide further information on the accounting estimates and judgements
made by the Group (seec Notes 2.3), and reviewed on an ongoing basis. Where necesaary,
comparative data has been adjusted to conform with changes inpresentation in the current year.

The Group has applied a number of amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are mandatorily effective for an
accounting period that begins on or after 1 Janmary 2022,
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TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CDNSDLIDATED)
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

fa)  Statement of compliance (continued)

New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that are effective in the

2.1
CHFrent year

Amendments {o IFRS 3 Reference o the Conceptual Fromework

The amendments update IFRS 3 Business Combinations so that it refers to the 2018
Conceptual Framework instead of the 1989 Framework. They also add to IFRS 3 a
requirement that, for obligations within the scope of TAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contlingent Assels, an acquirer applies TAS 37 to determine whether at the
acquigition date a present obligation exisis as a result of past events. For a levy that
would be within the scope of IFRIC 21 Levies. the acquirer applies IFRIC 21 to
determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has
occurred by the acquisition date.

Amendments to TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment—Froceeds Before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deduecting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling ilems produced before that assel is available for
use. i.e. proceeds while bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Consequently, an
entity recognises such sales proceeds and related costs in profit or loss. The entity
measures the cost of those items in accordance with TAS 2 Inventories.

The amendments also clarify the meaning of “testing whether an asset is functioning
properly’ IAS 16 now specifies this as assessing whether the technical and physical
performance of the asset is such that it 1s capable of being used in the production or
supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes.

If not presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income, the financial
statements shall disclose the amounts of proceeds and cost included in profit or loss that
relate to items produced that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities, and
which line item(s) in the staternent of comprehensive mcome include(s) such proceeds
and cost,
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TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONSOLIDATED)
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2 Significant Accounting Policics (continued)
fa) Statement of compliance (continued)

New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that are effective in the

2.1 ,
current year (confinyed)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts—Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the coniract. Costs that relate directly to a contract consist of both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour or
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an
example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

This amendment simplifies the application of IFRS 1 for a subsidiary that becomes a
first-time adopter of IFRS Standards later than its parent, e, if a subsidiary adopts TFRS
Standards later than its parent and applies IFRS 1. Under the revision, a subsidiary may
elect to measure cumulative translation differences at amounts included in the
consolidated financial statements of the parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to
IFRS Accounting Standards,

The amendment will ease transition to the IFRS standards for the subsidiary by avoiding
the requirement for parallel accounts and reducing costs associated with this,

Amendment to [FRS 9 Financial [nstruments

This amendment clarifies that — for the purpose of performing the ‘10 per cent test’ for
derecognition of financial liabilities — in determining those fees paid net of fees
received, a borrower includes only fees paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf.
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TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONSOLIDATED)
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
fa)  Statement of compliance {continued)

New, revised and amended stondards and interpretations that are effective in the
current year (confinued)

Annual Improvements fo TFRS Accountfing Standards 200182020 Cycle (confinued)

i} Amendment ro IFRS 16 Leases

The amendment removes the illustration of payments from the lessor relating to
leaschold improvements. As previpusly drafied, fhas examiple was unclear about
whether the pavments meet the definition of a lease incentive.

Onerous Contracts—Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (dmendmenis fo 145 37, Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets) , clarifies that when assessing if a contract
1z onerous, the cost of fulfilling 1t includes all costs related directly to the contract. Such
costs include both:

= the incremental costs of the contract (i.e., costs a company would avoid if it did not
have the contract, like direct labor and materialg); and

« an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling the contract (e.g.. contract
management and supervision, or depreciation of equipment used in fulfilling it).

Beference to the Conceptual Framework (dAmendments to TFRS 3, Business
Combinations) . updates references in IFES 3 {fo the revised 2018 Concepiual
Frameworle. The amendments introduce new excepfions to the recognition and
measurement principles in IFES 3 to ensure that this update does not change which
assets and liabilities qualify for recognition in a business combination or create new Day
2 gains or losses.

Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to [AS 16, Property. Plant and Equipment
(FPE)). introduces new guidance. Proceeds from selling items (e.g.. samples) before the
related PPE ig available for itg intended use can no longer be deducted Grom the cost of
FPPE. Insiead, such proceeds are recognized in profit or loss, together with the cost of
producing those items (to which TAS 24 applies). Therefore, a Group will need (o
dizstinguizh belween:

= costs of producing and selling items before the PPE is available for its intended use;
and costs of making the PPE available for its intended use.
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TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONSOLIDATED)
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

fa)  Statement of compliance (contfinued)

New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that ave effective in the

21 )
current year (continued)

i) Amendment lo IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

- Determining how to characterize such costs may require significant estimation
and judgment. The amendments apply retrospectively but only for new PPE that reaches
its intended use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the company first applies the amendments. They can be early
adopted.

These amendments have no impact on the company’s financial statements.

New, revised and amended standards and interpretations in issue that are not yet

22 i
effective

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after January 1.
2022 and earlier application is permitted; however the company has not early adopted
the new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements,

i) - IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.

IFRS 17 outlines a general model, which is modified for insurance contracts with direct
participation features, described as the variable fee approach. The general model is
simplified if certain criteria are met by measuring the liability for remaining coverage
using the premium allocation approach.

TRIMRE 2023 ANMUAL REPORT | 28




TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONSOLIDATED)
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
faj  Statement of compliance (continued)

New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective
" (continued)

i)+ IFRS 17, Insurance Conlracts (continued)

The general model uses current assumptions to estimate the amount, timing and
uncertainty of future cash flows and 1t explicitly measures the cost of that uncertainty. It
talces into account market interest rates and the impact of policyholders™ options and
guarantees.

In June 2020, the IASB issued Amendments to IFES 17 to address concerns and
implementation challenges that were idenfified after [FRS 17 was published. The
amendments defer the date of initial application of IFRS 17 (incorporating the
amendments) to annual reporting periods begimning on or after | January 2023. At the
same time, the IASB issued Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying
IFRS 9 (Amendments to IFRS 4) that extends the fixed expiry date of the temporary
exemption from applying IFRS 9 in [FRS 4 to annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 Jamuary 2023.

In December 2021, the IASB issued Initial Application of [FRS 17 and IFRS
O—Comparative Information (Amendment to TFRS 17) to address implementation
challenges that were identified afier IFRS 17 was published. The amendment addresses
challenges in the presentation of comparative information.

IFRS 17 must be applied retrospectively unless impracticable, in which case the
modified retrospective approach or the fair value approach is applied.

Additional disclogures on this standard can be found in note 26,

20 | TRIMRE 2023 ANMUAL REFORT




TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONSOLIDATED)
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2 Signilicant Accounting Policies (continued)
fa)  Statement of compliance (continued)

22 New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective
= fcomtinued)

TIFRS 17 Inswrance Contracts (coniinued)

For the puipose of the trangition requirements, the date of initial application 12 the
start of the annual reporiing period in which the entity first applies the Standard, and
the transition date is the beginning of the period immediately preceding the date of
initial application.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidared Financial Statements and IAS 28 fmvesimenis
in Associates and Joint Ventwres—Sale ov Contribution of Assets hetween an
fnvestor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and TAS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of asgets betwegen an investor and its associate or joint venturs.
Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the loss of
control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a transaction with an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, are
recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
Interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from
the remeasurement of investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has become
an assoclate or a joimnt venture that 1s accounted for using the equity method) to fair
value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by the JASB; however, earlier
application of the amendments is permitted.
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TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

NMOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CGNSDLIDATED}
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(a)

2.2

Statement of compliance (continued)

New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective
(continued)

- Amendments to IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements—Classification af
Liabilities ay Curreni or Non-Curreni

The amendments to IAS 1 published in January 2020 affect only the presentation of
liabilities as current or non-current in the statement of financial position and not the
amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liability, income or expenses, or the
information disclosed about those ilems.

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current
is based on rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting period, specify that
classification 13 unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its
right to defer settlement of a liabality, explain that rights are in existence if covenants
are complied with at the end of the reporting period. and imtroduce a definition of
‘settlement” to make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of
cash, equily instruments, other assels or services.

The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or afier
1 January 2023, with sarly application permitted. The [ASB is currently considering
further amendments to the requirements in IAS 1 on classification of liabilities as
current or non-corrent, including deferring the application of the Januwary 2020
amendments.
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TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONSOLIDATED)
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
fa)  Starement of compliance (continued)

New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective

22 (continued)

- Amendments to TAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice
Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements—Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments change the requirements in IAS 1 with regard to disclosure of
accounting policies. The amendments replace all instances of the term ‘significant
accounting policies” with *material accounting policy information®. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered together with other information
included in an entity’s financial statements. it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statemenis.

The supporting paragraphs in IAS 1 are also amended to clarify that accounting policy
information that relates to imumaterial transactions, other events or conditions is
immaterial and need not be disclosed. Accounting policy information may be material
because of the nature of the related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information relating
to material transactions, other events or conditions is itself material.

The LASB has also developed guidance and examples to explain and demonstrate the
application of the “four-step materiality process® described n IFRS Practice
Statement 2,

The amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023, with earlier application permitted and are applied prospectively.
The amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 do not contain an effective date or
trangition requiremnents.
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TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONSOLIDATED)
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(@)

2.2
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Statement af compliance (continued)

New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective
feontinued)

- Amendments to IAS 1 Presemtafion of Financial Statements—Classification af
Liahilities as Curvent or Non-Current (continued).

The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a
definition of accounting estimates, Under the new definition, accounting estimates are
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainiy™.

The amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or afler
1 January 2023, with earlier application permitted and are applied prospectively. The
amendments to [FRS Practice Statement 2 do nol contain an effective date or
lrangition requirements.

The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted. However, the IASB
retained the concept of changes in accounting estimates in the Standard with the
Tollowing clarifications:

= A change in accounting estimale that resulis Fom new information or new
developmenis is not the cotrection of an error.

* The effects of a change in an input or a measurement technique used to develop an
accounting estimate are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from the
comrection of prior period errors.

The amendments are elfective for annual periods beginning on or afler 1 January

2023 to changes in acgounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that
occur on or afier the beginning of that period, with earlier application permitied.

ANMUAL REPORT




TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONSOLIDATED)
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
fa)  Statement of compliance (continued)

2 New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that ave not yet effective
(continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes—Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
Arsing from a Single Transaction.

The amendments introduce a further exeception from the initial recognition
exemption. Under the amendments, an entity does not apply the initial recognition
exemption for transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences may arise on initial recognition of an asset and liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit.
For example, this may arise upon recognition of a lease liability and the
corresponding right-of-use asset applying IFRS 16 at the commencement date of a
lease.

Following the amendments to IAS 12, an entity is required to recognise the related
deferred tax asset and liability, with the recognition of any deferred tax asset being
subject (o the recoverability criteria in JAS 12.

The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented. Tn addition, at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period an entity recognises:

= A deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary difference can be ufilised) and a
deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated
with:
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2
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

fa)

2.2

| TRINR

Statement of compliance (continued)

New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that arve not yet effective
(continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes—Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
Arising from a Single Transaction (continued).

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

Decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the corresponding amounts
recognised as part of the cost of the related asset,

The cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the

opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at
that date.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023, with earlier application permitied.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONSOLIDATED)
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

fa)

2.2

Statement of compliance (continued)

New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective
(continued)

- IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018, replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised
guidance on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities,
inchuding a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment of financial
assets and the new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the
guidance on recognition and derccognition of financial instruments from IAS 39.
Although the permissible measurement bases for financial assets — amortised cost,
[air value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and [Fair value though profit
or loss (FVTPL) — are similar to TAS 39, the criteria for classification into the
appropriate measurement category are significantly different. IFRS 9 replaces the
‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an “expected credit loss’ model, which means
that a loss event will no longer need to occur before an impairment allowance is
recognised.

Pursuant to the above, the Group has decided to defer the implementation of IFRS 9
until the earlier of the effective date of a new insurance standard and 2023 {*deferral
approach”) which is available to reporting entities with a predominant part of their
business devoted to the activity of issuing contracts within the scope of IFRS 4.
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2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
fa)  Statement of compliance (continued)

New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective

i (continued)

- IFRS 9, Financial Instrumenis (coniinued)

Ag the carrying amount of its liabilities arising from contracts within the scope
of IFRS 4, Insurance Confracts is significant compared to the total carrying amount
of all its liabilities. The annual reporting period immediately before 1 April 2023 was
31 March 2023. At that reporting date, the percentage of the total carryving amount of
its liabilities connected with insurance relative to the total cairying amount of all
its liabilities was 90%. Insurance related revenue and expenses were 91% and 97%
of total revenue and expenses, respectively.

The Group will continue to apply IAS 39 until March 31, 2023.

To enable a comparison with entities applying IFRS 9, entities that apply the deferral
approach are required to disclose the following information:

» Fair value and changes in fair value separately for:

{a) those financial assets that pass the solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) test, excluding any financial asset that meets the definition of held for trading
in IFRS 9, or that iz managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis and

(b) all other financial assets, including financial assets that are managed and whose
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. Refer to Note 8.

* Credit ratings of financial assets that pass the SPPT test. Financial assets which pass
the SPPT test are assets with contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely paymenis of principal and inlerest on the principal amount
outstanding,. Refer to Note 8.
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TRINRE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONSOLIDATED)
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b} Basiz of measurement
These financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basizs except for the
measurement at fair value of investment securities and investment property at fair value
through profit and loss. No account 18 taken of the effecis of inflation. The Group has
consistently applied the accounting policies set out below to all periods presented in
these finamcial statements,

(c)  Functional and presentation currency

Amounts included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency).
These financial statements are presented in Trinidad and Tobago dollars, which is the
Group’s functional and presentation currency.

(d)  Use of estimates, assumptions and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management
to make judgements. estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses and contingent
assets and liabilitics. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carryving values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates,
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2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)  Use of estimates, assumplions and judgements (continyed)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revigion and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that have a
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk
of material adjustment in the next year are discussed below:

Determining fair values

Fair value reflects the present value of future cash flows associated with a
fnancial asset or liabilily where an active market exists. Observable market
prices or rates are used to determine fair value. For financial instruments with
no active market or a lack of price transparency, fair values are estimated vsing
calculation techniques based on factors such as discount rates, credit risk and
liquidity. The assumptions and judgements applied here affect the derived fair
value of the instruments.

Impairment of assets

The identification of impairment and the determination of recoverable amounts
is an intently uncertain process involving various assumptions and f[actors,
including the financial condition of the counterparty, expected future cash flows,
observable market prices and expecled net selling prices.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONSOLIDATED)
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)  Use of esfimaies, assumpiions and judgemenis (coniinued)

Estimate of future benefit payments and premiums arising from long-term insurance
contracis

Actuarial liabilities include two major components: a best estimate reserve and a
provision for adverse deviations. This latter provision is established in recognition of
the uncertainty in computing best estimate reserves, to allow for possible deterioration
in experience and to provide greater comfort that reserves are adequate to pay future
benefits.

For the respective reserve’s assumptions for mortality, lapse, future investment yields,
operating expenses and taxes, best estimate assumptions are determined where
appropriate for each major product line.

Frovisions for adverse deviations are established based on the risk profiles of the
business. They are determined within a specific range established by the Canadian
Standards of Practice.

The reserve assumption for each component of policy cash tlow consists of an
assumption for the expected experience and, separately, a margin for adverse deviation
that reflects the degree of uncertainty in the expected experience assumption. The
expected experience and the margin reflect the latest current experiences.

Detailed analyses are carried out by the Group’s Consulling Actuary 1o determine the
best estimate assumptions.

Lapse and expenses studies were performed to determine the best estimate lapse and
per policy future administrative expense assumptions. Due to events taking place
subsequent to the year-end, management has adopted a conservative lapse assumption
to reflect uncertainties relating to future policyholder behaviour.
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2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(d)  Use of estimates, assumptions and judgements {continued)

Estimate of future benefit payments and premiums arising from long-term insurance
contracts fcontinued)

= Outstanding Claims

Outstanding claims comprise estimates of the number of reported losses and expenses
plus a provision for losses incurred but not reported based on historical experience. The
loss and loss expense reserves have been estimated by the Group's actuary using the
Group’s past loss experience and industry data.

Amounts recoverable in respect of claims from reinsurers are estimated in a manner
consistent with the underlying liabilities. Notes 21 and 23 contain information about the
assumptions and uncertainties relating to insurance liabilities and discloses the risk
factors in these contracts.

(dl  Foreign Currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are translated to Trinidad and Tobago dollars at the
foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on
translation are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. There are no non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
CUITENCY.

i Property, Plant & Eguipmeni

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairmeant losses. Subsaquent costs arg included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred. Land 1s
not depreciated.
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YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

ifl  Property, Plant & Equipment

Depreciation on non-right of use assets is computed on the reducing balance basis at rates
sufficient to write-off the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives.

The rates used are as follows:

Buildings 2%

Furniture and equipment 20%

Fixtures and fittings 20%

Motor vehicles 25%

Compuier equipment 20%

Right of use assels Over the lease life

The asset’s residual wvalue, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date,

(g)  Intangible Asseis

Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable and unique
software products controlled by the Group. and that will probably generate fiture
economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognized as intangible assets.
These costs are amortized over their estimated useful lives. Costs associated with
maintaining computer software programmes are recognized as an expense as incurred.

(k) Tmvesiment Froperiy

Investment property principally comprises land and building not occupied by the Group,
which is held for long-term rental yields and capital appreciation. Investment property is
classified as a non-current asset and was previously measured using the cost model
During 2014, management decided to change the measurement model to a fair value
model and accordingly investment property is now revalued.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from disposal and the carryving amount of the item) is
recognized in profit or loss.
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2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{i)

Tnsurance confracts recognition and measurement

(i)

(i)

Reinsurance qgsets

The Group assumes and cedes reinsurance in the normal course of business. Reinsurance
assets primarily include balances due from reinsurance companies for ceded insurance
liabilities.

Premiums on reinsurance assumed are recognized as revenue In the same manner as they
would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account the product
classification of the reinsured business.

Amounts due to reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the associated
reinsured policies and in accordance with the reinsurance contract. Premiums ceded and
claims reimbursed are presented on a gross basis.

An impairment review is performed on all reinsurance assets when an indication of
impairment occurs. Reinsurance assets are impaired only if there 1= objective evidence that
the Group may not receive all amounts due to it under the terms of the confract and that this
can be measured reliably.

Tnsurance Recejvables

Insurance receivables are recognized when due and measured at amortized cost, using the
effective interest rate method. The carryving value of insurance receivables is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable, with the impairment loss recorded in the statement of comprehensive income.
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YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(i} Insurance contracts recognition and measurement (continued)
fii)  Imsuramce Liabilities

Life insurance coniract liabilities

Life insurance liabilities for policyholders® benefits that are expected to be incurred in
the future are recognized when coniracts are entered into and premiums are charged.
The liability is based on the present value of estimated amounts for projected future
premiwms, claims, benefits, investment income and policy maintenance expenses.
The liahility is based on key assumptions made with respect to variables such as
mortality, persistency, investment returns and expense inflation. The liabilities are
actuarially recalculated at each statement of financial position date and the change in
the liability is recognized as an expense in the statement of income.

Death claims are recorded in profit or loss net of reinsurance recoverable.

General insurance contract liabilities are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all
claims incurred but not setiled at the reporting date, whether reported or not.
Significant delays can be experienced in the notification and settlement of certain
types of general insurance claims, therefore the ultimate cost of which cannot be
known with certainty at the reporting date.

Reported cutstanding general insurance claims comprise the estimated costs of all
claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date, less any reinsurance recoverics.
In estimating the liability for the cost of reporied claims not yet paid, the Group
considers any information available from adjusters and information on the cost of
settling claims with similar characteristics in previous periods. Provision is made for
claims incurred but not reported until after the reporting date.
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2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(i) Insurance contracis vecognition and measurement (continued)
(it} Insurance Liabilities

Life insurance contract labilities

Differences between the provisions for outstanding claims and subsequent revisions
and settlement are included in the statement of comprehensive income in the year the
claims are settled.

The estimation of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is generally subject to a
greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling claims already
notified to the Group, where more information about the claim event is generally
available. Claims IBNE may often not be apparent to the insurer until many years
atter the event giving rise to the claims has happened.

Provision for unearned premiums

The proportion of written premiums attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as
unearned premium. The change in the provision for unearmed premium is taken to
the income statement in the order that revenue is recognized over the period of risk.

(iti)  Provision for other insurance financial llabilities

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation, as a result of past events, which it is probable will result in an ouiflow of
resources and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made,
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YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
fiv) Deferred acquisition and deferred commission income

Commission paid to agents and brokers for insurance contracts that are related to
securing new and renewing existing contracts and commission income are deferred on a
basis consistent with that used for deferring premium income.

(i) Fimancial Instruments
i) Classification

The Group designates all financial assets as investment securities at fair valus through
profit and loss to eliminate or substantially reduce the mismatch which would otherwise
arise and be consistent with how these investments are reported and managed
internally.

ii) Recognition

All purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the settlement date. From
thiz date, any gaing and losses arizing from changes in fair value of assetz are
recognized.

iii) Measurement

Fnancial mstruments are imitially measured at cost, being the fair value plus the
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the instrument. A
financial asset is derecognized when the contractual right to receive cash flows expire or
when the asget is transferred.
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2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{i) Fingnelal Instruments (continved)
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i) Measurement (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition all investment securities at fair value through profit and loss
are measured at fair value, based on readily available market prices at the close of business
on the reporting date for listed instruments or by reference o current markei values of
another instrument which is substantially the same. If prices are not readily available, the fair
value is based on either valuation models or management’s estimate of amounts that could be
realised under current market conditions. Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates and the discount rate
18 a market related rate at the reporting date for an instrument with similar terms and
conditions.

Any investment security at fair value through profit and loss that does not have a gquoted
market price in an active market and where fair value cannot he reliably measared is stated at
cost, Including transaction costs, less Impairment losses.

Gains and losses arising from the change in the fair value of investment securities at fair
value through profit and loss subsequent to initial recognition are accounted for in the
profit and loss. All non-trading financial liabilities and held-to-maturity assets are
measured at amortised costs less impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated on the
effective interest rate method.

Premiums and discounts, including initial {ransaction costs, are included in the carrying
amount of the related instrument and amortised based on the effective interest rate of the
instrument. The amortisation of premiums and discounts is taken to the statement of
comprehensive income.
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2

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k)

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risks of change in value. These are
shown at cost.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s asseis, other than deferred tax assets [see accounting
policy (q)], are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and an
impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In order to determine whether negative revaluations on investment
securities correctly represent impairment, all investment securities for which the market value
has been significantly below cost price for a considerable period of time are individually
reviewed. A distinction is made between negative revaluations due to general market
fluctuations and due to issuer specific developments. The impairment review focuses on
issuer specific developments regarding financial condition and finure prospects, taking into
account the intent and ability to hold the securities under the Group™s long-term imvestment
strategy. Impairment losses are recognized in profit and loss.

i) Calculation of Recoverable Amount

Receivables with a short duration are not discounted.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
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2

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0

(m)

Impairment {contined)

i) Calenlation of Recoverable Amount (continued)

For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows. the recoverable
amonnt iz determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs,

ii) Reversals of Impairment

An impairment loss in respect of a receivable carried at amortised cost is reversed if
the subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognized.

In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates nused to determine the recoverable amount.

An impaimment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation. if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Product Classification

Insurance coniracts

Insurance contracts are defined as those containing significant insurance risk at the
inception of the contract. The significance of insurance risk is dependent on both the
probability of an insured event and the magnitude of its potential effect. Once a
contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance confract
for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly
during this period.

Investment contracts
Any contracts not considered insurance contracts under IFRS are classified as
investment contracts.

All contracts held by the Group as at March 31, 2023 have been classified as
insurance contracts.
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2

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

(a)

Employee Benefits

The Group operates pension scheme arrangements which provide individual annuities
pavable on retirement for all senior managers and qualifying monthly paid employees, which
are administered through individual policy contracts. This is a defined contribution plan to
which the Group contributes 5% of salary.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays a fixed
contribution into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further contribution if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits
relating to employee service in the ¢urrent and prior periods. The Group’s contribution is
charged to the income statement in accordance with the accrual basis.

Revenue Recognition

Premium income

Premiums wrilten are recognized on policy inception and earned on a pro rata basis over the
term of the related policy coverage.

Commission income

The fee is recognized as revenue in the period in which it is received unless these relate to
service to be provided in future periods. If the fees are for services to be provided in future
periods, these are deferred and recognized in the income statement ag the service is provided
over the term of the contract.

Reinsurance commission is recognized on a basis that is consistent with the recognition of
the costs incurred on the acquisition of the underlying insurance contracts [see note 2(i){i}].
Profit commission in respect of reinsurance contracts is recognized on an acerual basis.
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2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

fo)

()

(q)

Revenue Recognition (continued)

Investment income

If the fees are for services to be provided in fiture periods, these are deferred and recognized
in the income statement as the service is provided over the term of the contract. Interest
income is recognized in the income statement as it accrues, taking into account the effective
yield of the asset or an applicable floating rate. Interest income includes the amortization of
any discount or premium. Invesiment income also includes dividends, which are recognized
as received.

Realised gaing and losses recorded in the income statement

Realised gains and losses on the sale of property and equipment and of investment securities
at fair value through profit and loss are calculated as the difference between net sales
proceeds and the original cost. Realised gains and losses are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income when the sale transaction occurs.

Other income & expenditure
Other income and expenditure items are accounted for on the accrual basis.

Taxation

Tax on income comprises current tax and the change in deferred tax. Current tax comprises
tax payable calculated on the basis of the expected taxable income for the period, using the
tax rate enacied by the reporting date, business levy and green fund levy, charged on
worldwide income, and any adjustment of tax payable for the previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences
between the carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes, except differences relating to the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
which affect neither accounting nor taxable income (loss).
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2

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

faq)

(r)

(s}

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated on the basis of the tax raie that is expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is setiled. The effect on the deferred tax of any
changes in the tax rate is charged to the statement of comprehensive income, except to the
extent that it relates to items previously charged or credited directly to equity.

Deferred tax assets relating to the camry forward of unused tax losses are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax losses can be utilised.

Catastrophe Reserve

As required by Section 44 (1) of the Insurance Act 2018 of Trinidad and Tobago at least
20% of the Group's net written premium income on its property insurance business for
that year is to be appropriated towards a Catastrophe Reserve until such swiplis equals to
the net written premium income on the insurer’s property insurance business for that year.
This reserve is not distributable and is currently $1,000,137 (2022; §1,005,495)

Related Parties

A party is related to the Group, ift
(1) Directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:
a) is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Group (this includes
parents, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries);
b) has a direct or indirect interest in the Group that gives it significant influence;
or
¢) has joint control over the Group;
(i1) the party is an associate of the Group:
(iii) the party is a joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or its parent;
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2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(s)

¥

(1)

Related Parties (continued)

{(v) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

{(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly confrolled or significantly
influenced by, or for which significant voting power in such entity resides with,

{vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of emplovees of the
Group.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related
parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.

The Group has a related party relationship with its directors and key management personnel,
representing certain senior officers of the Group, its parent Group and all their affiliates.

Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in
presentation in the current period.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract 18, or contains, a lease if the contract convevs the right to control the nse of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to conirol the use of an identified asset, the Group uses the
definition of a lease in IFRES 16.

i Asalessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its
relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of property the Group has elected not to
separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a
single lease component.
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2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(u) Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line meathod from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term. unless the lease transfers ownership of the
underlving asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will
be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. which is determined on the same
basis as those of property samd equipment. In addifion. the right-of-use asset is periodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease
liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the scheduled lease payments,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally. the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

I.  Asalessee (continued)

The Group determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtalning interest rates from various
lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;
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2

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

fi)

Leases fcontinied)

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

— the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain 1o
exercise. lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is
reasonably certain to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Group changes its assessment of whether it
will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance
fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability 15 remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment i$ made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Changes in significant accounting policies

There were no changes in significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2023,
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4  Property. Plant and Equipment

Office  Eguipmen| Dotor Computer Building Workin  Building Towal

Furniture Vehicles Equipment Improvemenis Progress
& Filfings
§ § § ¥ ¥ § § ¥

Year Ended
March 31, 2023
Cost
Movements for the year
Mazch 31, 2022 3283541 2408337 1775256 34677514 A353058 130,297 1325000 16957403
Additions 49,122 74378 - 346,583 - - - 670083
Disposals - (6.373) - 11,834 - - - (18.25T
Balance as at
March 31, 2023 3332663 2476342 1779256 4212613 4353058 130,297 1325000 17.60922%

Accumuiated Depreciation

Halance as al 2041854 1R24297 1245336 2393684 2.BS5.607 - TI.558 10436236
Mareh 31, 2022
Charge 274,195 126,417 143,938 296200 307,731 = 25070 1.172.551
Disposals - (5,504 - (8,925 - - - {14 429)
Balapce as at

March 31, 2023 2316045 1945210 1398074 2,680,959  3,157.538 - 96,628  11,594.358
Net book value

March 31, 2023 1016614 531,132 IR1.082 1,531,654 1IGE 720 130297 1,228,372 5,014.E71
March 31, 2022 1.241.687 584,040 530021 1.284.231 1497451  1302%7 1,253,442 6,521.167
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4 Property. Plant and Equipment {continued)

(ffice
: = Muotor Computer Building Work in g
F'Ill':111.:l.ll o Mg een Vehicles  Equipment Improvements  Progress Building Tal
Fittings
£ 5 4 $ & 5 §
Year Ended
March 31, 2022
Cost
bervements for the year
hlarch 31, 2021 2978773 2,28R23% |, 0B084E 3447745 3,714,162 : 1,325,000 15436770
Addditions 304 768 120,059 U2 408 230,185 36,896 130,257 = 1,520,633
Digpozals - - - - - - - -
Balance az &t
March 31, 2022 3383540 2408337 1779356 3677914 4353058 130,297 1325000 16957403

Accumulated Depreciation

BEalance as at

Mazch 31, 2021 1,E03,447 1,700,339 1,105,193 2,109, Tk 2582175 - 45 978 9,346,916
Charge 238,407 123,958 144,043 283,500 273432 - 25,580 1,089,320
Disposals = = - = = = = =
Balance gz at

March 37, 2022 2,041 854 | B34 297 | 249 236 2,593 684 4,855,607 - 71,558 10436236
Nt book value

March 31, 2022 1,241,687 584,040 530,021 1,284 231 | 497 451 130,257 1,253 442 5,321,167
Blarch 31. 2021 1,175,326 587,889 575.655 1,337 965 1,133,987 - 1,279.022 4,089,854
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5 Leases

Ag a lesses

The Group leases some assets, including properties, IT equipment and a motor vehicle, As a lesses, the Group
previously classified leases as operating or finance lenses based on 115 assessment of whether the lepse transferred
substantially all of the nisks and rewards of ownership. Under IFES 16. the Group recognizes right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for most leases — Le.. these leases are on-balance sheet. However, the Group has elected not to
recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for some leases of low-value assets (e.g. IT equipment), The
Group recognizes the lease pavments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in
“property, plant and equipment’, the same line item as it presents underlying azsets of the same nature that it owns.
Right-of-uge assets that meet the definition of investment property are presented within investment property, The
implemnentation of the new standard had negligible inpact on the financial statements,

Information about leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented below.
fa)  Right-of-use assets

Properties Maotar Vahicle Total

b 3 £
Balamee at Apsil 1, 2022 16473985 264,142 16,738,127
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
Depreciation charge for the vear (4,040,423, (66,036 (4,115438)
Adjustments (98,397 - (98,397)
Balance at March 31, 2023 12,326,165 198,106 12,524 272

Properties Motor Vehicle Total

b i £
Balance at Apxil 1, 2021 12175346 330,178 12.505.524
Additions 2,534,608 - 0,534,608
Disposals (1,537,709 (66,036)  (1,603,745)
Depreciation charge for the year (3,698,260 - (3,698,260)
Balance ai March 31, 2022 16,473,985 204,142 16,738,127
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5

Leases (continued)
As a lessee (contined)

(a) Lease Liabilities

baturity analysis — conttactoal undiscounted cash flows:

Lzas than one year
Omne 1o five years
Crar five vears

Less: Foture Interest

Total discounted leage liabilities at Bdarch 31, 2023

Less: Current portion
Won-Current portion
(b} Amounts recognized in the profit or loss:

Inrerest on lease Labilities
Depreciation

(o] Amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows

Total cash outflow for leases

Intangible Assets

Year ended March 31, 2023

Cosf
Balance as at barch 31, 2023

Accumulated depreciation
Balance o Apiil 1, 20212

Charge for the year
Balance as at March 31, 2023

MNet book value
Magch 31, 2023

Mareh 31, 2022
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223 2022
§ $
4 626,024 4,855,935
10,367,702 14.978.821
14,983,726 15,834,756
1.413.254) (2.295.774)
13,580 432 17,538,982
(1.283.262) (1.470,128)
12257170 16,068,854
714,235 222037
4,115 458 3,608 260
4084 272 3443112
Solftware Work in Deferred Tutal
Progress Development
Cosls
% g £ $
13,529,592 418.184 1,043,500 14.991 676
6,823,492 - B87.315 7.710.807
700,294 = 156,585 2865879
7.532.786 - 1,043,500 B, 376,680
5,994,806 413,184 = 3.414,.9%0
6.706.100 418,184 136,383 7280865
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6 Intangible Asseis (continued)

Sofiware Work in Deterred Total
Progress  Development
Costs
5 h] 5 b
Year ended March 31, 2022
Cust
Balance az at March 31, 2022 13,529,592 418,184 1,043,900 14 991 &76
Accumuloted depreciation
Balance as at April 1. 2021 045,825 - 678,535 6,724 480
Charge for the year 177567 - 208,780 986,347
Balance as at March 31, 2022 6,823 4097 - BETAIS 7,710,807
Net book valne
March 31, 2022 6,706,100 413,184 156,585 7,280,869
March 31, 2021 TA84,050 413,184 365,365 £.167.570

T Investment Property
Investment property comprises three assets:
13 22A King Street, Kingbury Flace. Arima, Trinidad
2) Unit 1203, 351 FLE Condominium, 551 North Fort Landerdale Beach Boulevard, Fort Landerdale, 1.5 AL
3) 4 lots of land located at Block 2, Peter’s Hall. East Bank, Demerara.

2023 D22
5 $
Net book value as at March 31 13,627,368 9,750,000
Addition 3,090,150 3,877.368
Valhiation adjustment 1,359,244 -
Valuation as at the end of the vear/period 18,076.762 13,627,368

The property at 22 A King Street. Kingsbury Place, Arima, Trinidad was valued by Raymond & Pierre Ltd., an
independent prolessional valuator, whose repoit dated Auguost 24, 2020,

The property at 351 North Fort Lavderdale Beach Boulevard, Fort Lavderdale was purchased in February
2022, A valuation was carried oul by Cardinal Reality Advisors in June 06, 2022,

The property at Block 2, Peter’'s Hall, Guyanza, was valued by Kurt Gonsalves, an independent professional
valuator, whose repoit dated April 20, 2022,
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7 Investment Property (continued)

The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring fair value as well as the
significant unobservable inputs nsed.

Valuation Signilicant Inter-relationship between
technigues unobservable key unobservable inputs and
inpuis fair value measurement
Income approach » Net income before debt The estimated fair value would
service and depreciation ncrease/(decrease) if!
This model:
+ Considers a property’s + The potential rental value | » Judgement about what the
potential cashflows of the property in the property can be sold, exchanged,
current mvestment climate. let, mortgaged, which had been

determined to be better/{worse),

+ Analyses the present worth of » The potential rental value of the
the anticipated future benefits property increased/decreased.
to the owner over an assumed
holding period

s Includes a discounted cash-
flow and income capitalization
procedure to compute the
value of property

Investment property in the current and prio: vear are classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as
per IFRS fair value measuwrement as the inputl for the valuation is not based on an observable market
data.

Income and expenses in respect of investment properties are:

2023 2022
5 5
Rental income and service costs - 775,617
Investment property expense - {151.026)
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& Investment Securities

2023 2022
§ $

Securities at fair value through profit and loss

Equity securities 47.830,187 67,808,454
hfutual funds 1.555,034 14,067 466
Govermment and Government-guaranised bonds 31,536,168 44 327 020
Corporate bonds 5,341,458 5,004,854
Treasury Bills {maturing in over 3 days) 4,043,147 2,208,717

05725994 133 507583

Investrments., excluding interest receivable, are due from the reporting dat= as follows:

2023 2022
b b
Mo specific matuzity 50,385,221 81,966,052
Within 1 year 4 806,283 2208717
1 year to 5 years 20764224 3RIIZE56
COhver 3 years 10,770,266 10,998,059

93725994  133,507.584

The following lable presents the fair value and the amount of change in the fair value of the company’s Gnancial
assets as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31. 2022, showing separately the fair value of
financial assets with coniractual terms that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
intsrest on the principal amount outstanding (“SPPI™) and the fair valus of financial assets that do not give tise to
cash flows that are selely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (“non-SFPI™):

2023
Total Yalue SPFPL Financial Asseis Nan-SPPL Financial Assela
Fair valug Change in fair Fair value Change in
value Coir value
5 3 5 -] 5
Imvestments:
Equity securities 47,830,187 : & 47 B30,187 - 776,721
hefuial funds 2,555,034 - - 2,555,034 - -
T-Rillz {orver %0 days) A 043,147 d,043.147
Covernment and
Govermnment-
guaranteed bondz 31,956,168 31456, 68 (1300089 - - =
Covporate bonds 4,341,458 4,541 458 (150,552) - - -
93.725,9494 45340773 (1.451,641) 50355221 - 776,721
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8  Imvestment Securities (continued)

2022
Total ¥Valug SPPL Financial Assts Man-SPPI Financial Assets
Fair value Change in fair Fair valug Change in fair
value valoe
¥ 5 b 5 ¥
Investinznts:
Equity securities 67.899.485 - 67,899,485 9,248,675
Mulual funds 14,067 466 - - 14,067 466 832,573
Crovemment and 45062 495 45 062 495 (EOB.AL10) S -
corporate bonds 4269421 4 269421 41,879
Treazury bills 22087 2208717 - - -
133.507.583 51,540,633 (766,53 1) 81,966,951 2 10.081.247
Credit risk
2023
Carrving Fair Valne %o of
Value Fair
Credit Rating Amount Value
5 b3 5
Bonds and asset secorities
AMA o AAT 263689 -
BaA 23,989,021 23.989.021 100
Ba 1,529,933 1,529.933 1040
Below BA 10,207,800 10,207,800 100
Mot Rared .690,451 9,680,451 100
45 680,894 45417205
2022
Carrying Fair Valug % af
Value Fair
Credit Rating Amonnt Yalue
5 -3 5
Bonds and asset securitiss
Ba 27354335 27354335 100
BA B413.202 BA413.202 100
Below BA 8,380,007 8,380,007 100
Mot Rared 9,930,166 9,959,166 100
54,106,710 54,106,710
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9  Taxation
2023 2022
5 $

Income tax recognized in profit and loss

Corporation tax 2,642,106 771,703
Green fund levy 306,446 323,876
Prior year (over-provision)/under-provision of corporation tax (383,795) 793,372
Deferred tax expense relating to the origination/

reversal of temporary differences 1,096,412 115,278

3,061,169 2,010,229

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before provision for taxation 17,676,049 25.861,224
Tax at the statutory rate of 30% 3,302,813 7,738,367
Difference in tax rates 609,144 200,364
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 754,702 443203
Income exempt from tax (2,173,719 (8,054,372)
Business Levy 371,880 340,141
(Green Fund levy 306 446 323,876
Prior year over-provision of corporation tax (841,085) 795,372
Prior year over-provision of deferred tax (669,014) 115,278
Tax charge for year/period 3,661,169 2,010,229

Movement in the deferred tax linbility (asset)

Balance at the beginning of the year/period 403,331 1,227,711
Charge (credit) to the statement of comprehensive income 1,005,685 {B24 4400
Balance at the end of the year/period 1.499.016 403,331

Composition of deferred tax liability (asset)

Property, plant and equipment and leases. net 2,015,920 2,096,520
Deferred Acquisition Cost (Restatement in 2021) 1.977,577 2,186,997
Right of Use Asset (359,323) (263.889)
Claims incurred but not reported (1,407,972) (1,963,007
Loss Relief (B2,652) (1.022.947)
Catastrophe Reserve 4490 841 208,869
Other timing differences (1,144.374) {929.212)
1,499,017 403,331
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10 Reinsurance Assets

Claims reported and IBNR (Note 15 (c)
Provision for uneamed premiums (Note 15 (g))
Other items

11 Accounis Receivables and Prepayments

Insurance receivables
Other receivables
Prepayments

12 Due trom Related Parties

Caribbean Premium Financing Company Limited
IN Group Limited (formerly Investment Managers Limited)

Due to Related Parties

JM Group Limited

All outstanding balances with the related parties are unsecured.
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2023 2022
5 5
23.461,808 27,979,576
55,620,694 47,818,921

(512.191) (512,191)
78,570,311 75,286,306
2023 2022
$ -
36,452,440 22,409,260
6,811,385 2,829,659

834 562 686,808
44,098,387 25,923,727
2023 2022
$ $
5,155 1,908,733
1,676,666 .
1,681,821 1,908,733
2023 2022
$ $
- 1,583,983
- 1,583,983
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13 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at hand and in bank
Treasury bills maturing within 90 days
Money hMarket Funds

14 Stated Capital

Authorized

Unlimited number of ordinary and preference shares of no-par value

Tssued and fully paid ovdinary shares
11,666,666 shares of no-par value

2023 2022
5 ¥
20,102,233 11.397.263
20,265,391 2,566,078
4 577,767 4. 577,767
44945391  18.541.110

2023 2022
$ $

22,500,000 22,500,000

In March 2023, TRINRE issued a call for capital in the sum of 37,000,000 (seven million dollars), was

received from JN Group Limited.

As at the date of these financial statements, no shares have been formally issued in respect of the

capital call.

15 Insurance Liabilities
fel Analysis of insurance liahifities

Long term insurance condracts (Note 15(b))

Short term insurance coniracts

Claims reported and loss adjustment expenses (Note 15(e))
Claimg incurred but not reported (Note 13(c))

Unearned premiums (Nole 15(e})

Total msurance contracts liabilities

17,263,792 18,635,630

31,593,009  37.212.625
10,841,973 13,347,096
80441520 68,613,180
122,881,502 119,172,901

140,145,294 137,308,531
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15 Insurance Liabilities (continued)
fb) (1} Analysis of long-term insurance contracts
2023
Policy Class Policies  Annualized Face MNegative Btatutory Adjusted
Premiums Amguni Reseves Reserves Reserves
b 0000 5 b b
Unit Trust Corporation
(UTC) Benefit 4,120 43,572 22,563 (29.540) 106,465 136,405
Creditor Life 81,101 - 3,422,702 (353.426) 14921.512 14,954,938
BN & Claims Reserve 1.371.47% 1,371.479
Group Life 2,923 1,866,617 293,214 (303,337) 497,633 B00,970
98,144 19101589 8, TIRATO (366,T03F) 16,897,089 17,263,792
2022
Plicy Class Policies  Annualized Face Megative Statulory Adjusted
Premiums Amouni Reseves Reserves Reserves
§ $0000 $ 5 §
Unit Trust Corporation
(UTC) Benefit 4,407 48,148 24,160 124.347) 66,457 90,844
Creditor Life 112,532 - 8,822,503 190.263) 17620116 17,710.379
IBENR & Claims Keserve - -
Gioup Life 2,924 1,332 048 283,910 (256,946) 377,461 £34 407
119,863 1.380,1% 9,130,573 {371.55h) 15264074 18.635.630
b (i) Change in policvholders ' labilities.
2023 2022
5 3
a)  Actuarial Habilities:
At the beginning of the year 18635630 25,120,781
Changes in actuarial model and assumpiions (1.929.440) (6,531.244)
Normal changes in liabilities 357,602 44.093
At the end of the year 17.263,752  18,635.630
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15 Insurance Liabilities {continued)

(b (ii)  Actuarial liabilities are computed for the inswrance porifolio as follows:

1. The policy liabilities for both individual and group business have been calculated using the
Caribbean Policy Premium Method. This method uses Best Estimates of future operating
experience along with Margins for Adverse Deviations (M{ADz), to determine the reserve
required at the waluation date, such that the reserve and future expected cash flow receipts (e.g.,
premium, and investment income) are sufficient to meet all future cash flow expenditures (e.g.,
benefits and expenses).

2, Both individual and group business has been modelled on AXIS (actuarial valuation software)
nsing a report summary of records provided by the management of TRINRE.

3. Considering the statutory requirements in Trinidad, all policies with negative reserves have
been excluded from the reserves figures and set to zero.

(h) (iv) Sensitivity of actuarial liabilities to changes in assumptions:
The sensitivity of the actuarial liabilities to changes in assumptions is presented below,
assuming there is a simultanecus change in the assumption across all products.

Incease in Actuarial
Activities Net

2023 2022
$ s
Policy related assumptions
1% decrease in interest rates 245,081 237,347
10%% increase m future mortality rates 075,035 BA9816
10% decrease in future lapse rates (96,858) (87.976)
10% increase in future expense levels 178,911 248,734
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15 Insurance Liabilities (continned)
o) Analysis of claims reports on shart term insurance contracts:
2023
Notes Insurance Reinsurers' Net
Contracts Share of

Liabilities Liabilities

Provision for claims reported by policyholders 31.598.009 17.635.277 13.962.732
Provision for ¢laims incurrsd but not reported

(IBNR} 10,841,973 5,826,530 5015442
Total ¢laims reporled and IBNR 15 (f) 42439982 23461808 18,978.174
Provision for unearned premiums 15 (&) 20.441,520 55.620,694 24 8208268
Total ingurance contracts liabilities 122,881,502 79,082,502 43,799,000
2022
Notes  Insurance Reinsurers' Net
Contracts Share of

Liabilities Liabilities

Provision for claims reporied by policvholders 37.212,623 21.010.824 16,.201.801
Provision for ¢laims incurrsd but not reported

(TENE) 13,347,096 6,068,752 6,378,344
Total ¢laims reporled and IBNR 15 (f) 50,559,721 27.979.576 22,580,145
Provision for unearned preminms 15 (e) 68.613,180 47,818,922 20,794,258
Total insurance contracts liabilities 119,172,901 75798498 43374403
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15 Insurance Liabilities (continued)

(d) Movement on the provision for claims on shovt term insurance contracts:

At April 1, 2022

Claims mewTed

Claims paid during the year
At March 31, 2023

At April 01, 2021
Claims mearred

Claims paid doring the year
At March 31, 2022

(e} Provision for unearned premiyms on Short lerm inSurance coniracts:

At April 1, 2022

Premium written in the year
Premium earned during the vear
At March 31, 2023

At April 01, 2021

Premium written in the year
Premium camed during the year
At March 31, 2022

Insurance Reinsurer's Net
Contract Share of
Liabilitics Liahlities
5 5 b
50,559,721 27979 574 22.580.145
27,247,559 16,873,771 10,373,788
(35.367.298) (21,391,539) (13.975.759)
42,430 082 23,461,808 18,978,174
48 716,468 25,030,679 22.785.789
27.748.133 14,131,255 13.616.878
{23,904 380) (12,082,358) [13,822,523)
50,539,721 2797957 22,580,145
Insurance Reinsurer's Mei
Contract Share of
Liabilities Liablities
b 5 5
GE,613,180 47 818,922 20,794, 258
119,985,705 86,071,647 33314058
(108.157,365) (78209875 {29.287.490)
80,441,520 55,620,694 24 820,826
55403587 38,807 837 16,593,750
240,958,972 195,097,370 45,861,602
(227.749,379) {186,086,285) (41.663,094)
G8.613.180 47 818,922 20,794,258
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONSOLIDATED)
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

15 Insurange Liabilities (continued)

i Claims Developmieni

Claims development mformation is disclosed in order to illustrate the inswrance risk inherent m
the cotmpany. The lop patt of the table shows how the estimates of total claims for each
accident year develop over time. The estimates are increased or decreased as losses are paid
and more information beeomes known about the geverity of unpaid claims, The lower pot of
the table provides a reconcilistion of the total provision mcloded in the statement of financial
position and the estimate of cumulative claims.

Analysis of Net Claims Development

Accident Year
015 2014 2017 2019* 2020 2021 2022 2023 Tiwal
000 $'00a 3000 000 2000 3000 §000 £000 #1000
Egimine aF cummilive claimg
atend of ecciden yrar =
17,260 L2411 14,021 13471 11,756 13,368 B.T00 11,734
- oAt ybar laer 18457 14675 16.326 14527 14,135 5453 11731
- ey yeary later 19.960 15,404 17.509 16973 14.942 9,854
tavee yrars [ater 20,688 15383 17,517 17077 14508
four years laies 20,867 15491 18470 15388

- Five yead Tt 25214 16330 15084

- pa yeand lper 29 454 16,543

- sevem yrats Rter 18.358

Baimale oF tummilative claimg 15358 16,543 15.084 15388  14.505 2431 10.043 11,734 124,176

Cumulstive payments o cae (25420) (15938 (ITATed (137851 (L2800 16,041} (8333} (68U5) (105,197

i ki 2938 $05 L108 1608 1695 2390 3710 4920 18978

16 Borrowings 2023 2022
% £
Revolving term loan from Scotiabank obtained to assist with the
settlement of payables to reinsurers, Inferest is cummently charged
at the anrual rate of 5.75%. 7500000 1,200,000
7,500,000 1200000
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YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

17  Trade and Other Payables

Sundry creditors and accinals
Amounts due fo reinsurers

18  Net Results from Insurance Operations

Year ended March 31, 2023

Gross premiums (excl. fronting)
Fronting premiums

Premium ceded (o reinsurers

Net prermiums

Change in uneamed premiom reserve
Eamned premiwms

Reinsurance commission income
MNet underwriting revenus

Policy acquisition expenses

Met benelits and claims

Underwriting expense

Net results from insurance activities

Year ended March 31, 2022

Gross premiums (excl. fronting)
Fronting premiums

Premiom ceded to reinsurers

Net premiuns

Change in unearned premium reserve
Eamed premivims

Reinsurance commission income
MNet underwriting revenue

Policy acquisition expenses

MNet benefits and claims

Underwriting expense

Net results from insurance activities

2023

5
16,812,729
14,271,156

2022
$
11,930,970
23,431,215

31,083,385

35,362,185

Non Lile Lile Insurance Total
Insnrance
5 3 §
150,999 823 18,147 953 169147776
11,391,817 - 11,391,817
(118,432.704) (5,520,237) (123,952 041)
43 958,934 12.627.716 56,586,652
(4.000,071) = (4.000,071)
39,958,865 12,627,716 52,586,581
36,131,759 - 36,131,759
76,090,624 12,627,716 g8, 718,340
(17.451,902) (85.665) (17.537.367)
(10,764,257} (5,863,880) (16,628,137)
(28,216,159) (5,949 545) (34,165,704)
47,874,465 6,678,171 34,552,636
115976220 16,531,384 132 507,603
02,886,884 15,564,485 108,451,369
(175,165,147) (19,932,223} (195097370
33,697,956 12,163,646 43,861,602
(4,198,511) - (4,198,511)
29,499 445 12,163,646 41663091
27,786,101 - 27,786,101
57,283,344 12,163,646 69,440 192
(13,842 6BE) (834,084) (14,676,772)
(12,036,709) 1,801,632 (10,235,077)
(25,879,397) Q67,548 (24,911,849
31,406,149 13,131,194 44 537,343
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19 Operating Expenses

2023 2022
b3 5
Actuarial fees 182,589 235,757
Administrative fees 3,669 834 3,154,891
Advertising & promotions 1,911,120 1,384,719
Depreciation and amortization 2.037.609 2,075,724
Depreciation-right of use asset 4,115,458 3,698,260
Directors fees 390,446 332,142
Equipment rental 247,634 262,519
Management fees 251,062 1,054,369
Network and hardware maintenance 734,076 477 854
Occupancy expenses 1.909.430 1,755,741
Office expenses 380,865 270,093
Other expenses 3,885,799 3,104,259
Other staff costs 3,712,821 2,499,303
Professional fees 3,780,909 1,870,327
Fepairs and maintenance 337,021 212,776
Roadside assistance a73,750 571,000
Salaries 11,993,547 11,332,526
Software development 450,378 548,054
Software license and upgrade 653,863 555,453
Staff welfare 345,534 664,681
41,864,045 36,060,448
Finance Expenses
Interest on lease liabilities 714,235 222,037
Service charges 349 741 52417
Loan interest 286,872 173,070
1,350 B48 447 524
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20 Insurance Contracts Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets — Terms, Assumptions and
Sensitivities

Terms and Conditions
Non-Life

The major classes of non-life insurance contracts written by the Group include motor, property,
and other miscellaneous types of general insurance. Risks under these policies usually cover a
| 2-month duration.

For these insurance contracts, claims provisions (comprising provisions for claims reporied by
policyvholders and claims incurred but not yet reported) are established to cover the ultimate
cost of settling the liabilities in respect of claims that have occurred and are estimated based on
known facts at the reporting date.

The provisions are refined as part of a regular ongoing process and as claims experience
develops, certain claims are settled and further claims are reported. Outstanding claims
provisions are not discounted for the time value of money.

Group Life
The major classes of group life insurance contracts written by the Giroup include:

a) Creditor Life

In the event of death of an insured (client of the policyholder — financial institution), the policy
covers the outstanding balance of the insured’s loan.

h) Group Life

This provides coverage in the event of death of the insured. Current in-force policies are
annually renewable and offer coverage to age 65. Coverage amounts may be a flat benefit
where all insureds have the same face amounts or may be a multiple of salary benefit where
coverage is based on the salary of the insureds.
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20 Insurance Contracts Liabilities and Reinsurance Asseis — Terms, Assumptions and

21

Sensitivities (continued)

Assumptions

The principal assumption underlying the estimates 15 the Group’s past claims
development experience. This includes assumptions in respect of average claim costs and
claim numbers for each accident year. Claims provisions are separately analysed by
geographical area and class of business. In addition, larger claims are usually separately
assessed by loss adjusters. Judgement is used to assess the extent to which external
factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation affect the estimates.

Sensilivities

The general insurance claims provision is sensitive to the above key assumptions. The
sensitivity of certain assumptions like legislative change, uncertainty in the estimation
process, etc.. is not possible to quantify, Furthermore, because of delays that arise between
occurrence of a claim and its subsequent notification and eveniual settlement, the
cutstanding claim provisions are not known with certainty at the reporting date.

Consequently, the ultimate liabilities will vary as a result of subsequent developments.
Differences resulting from reassessment of the ultimate liabilities are recogmized in
subsequent financial statements.

Financial Instruments
Fair values

With the exception of insurance contracts which are specifically excluded under
International Accounting Standard No. 39, the estimated fair values of certain financial
instruments have been determined using available market information or other appropriate
valuation methodologies that require judgement in interpreting market data and
developing estimates. Consequently, estimates made do not necessarily reflect the
amounts that the Group would realize in a current market exchange. The use of different
assumptions and/or different methodologies may have a material effect on the fair values
estimated.
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21 Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair values (continued)

(i) Short-term financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amount of short-term financial assets and liabilities comprising cash and short-
term deposits, accounls receivable and accounts and other payables are a reasonable
estimate of their fair values because of the short maturity of these instruments.

(ii) Investments

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are traded in active markets are based
on quoted market prices or dealer quotations. For all other financial instruments, the Group
determines fair values using other valuation techniques.

(a) Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchies

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value
of financial instruments by valuation technigues:

Level 1

Included in the Level | category are financial assets and liabilities that are measured
in whole or in part by reference to published quotes in an active market.

A financial instrument 1s regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker. industry group.
pricing service or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring markel transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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21 Financial Instruments {continned)

(i)

Investment(s (continued)

{a) Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchies (confinued)

Level 2

Included in the Lewvel 2 category are financial assels and liabilities that are messored osing a
valuation technique based on assumptions that are supported by prices from observable curent
market fransactions and for which pricing is ebtained via pricing services, but where prices have not
been determined in an active market.

This includes financial assets with fair values based on broker quotes, investments in private equity
funds with fair values obtained via fund managers and assels that are valued using the Groups own
models whereby the majority of assumptions are market observable,

Level 3

Included in the Lewvel 3 category are financial assets and liabilities that are not quoted as there are
no active markets to determine a price. These financial insttuments are held al cost, being the fair
value of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the investrnent, and are regularly assessed for
impairment,

(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ % E L

March 31, 2023

Investments at fair value

through profit and loss 43,825,487 46,560,386 340,121 05,725,994
March 31, 2022

Investments at fair value

through profit and loss 67,045,541 52,287.402 - 119.332.943

Trarsfers between and movement in Levels

For the year ended March 31, 2023 there was no transfer of assets between and movement in
Levels.
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22 Insurance & Risk Management

(a)

Introduction and overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
»  Insurance risk

o  Credit risk

«  Liquidity

s Interest rate

=  Foreign currency

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the
Group’s objectives. policies and processes for measuring and managing risks and the
Group’s management of capital. The Board of Directors has overall responsibility tor the
establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework.

fusurance risk

The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will occur including the
uncertainty of the amount and timing of any resulting claimn. The principal risk the Group
faces under such contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the
premiums written or the carryving amount of insurance liabilities. This is influenced by the
frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid being greater than originally
estimated and subsequent development of long-term claims.

Management of insurance visk

The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting
strategy and guidelines as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements. The majority of
reinsurance business ceded is placed on a quota share basis with retention limits varying by
product line.
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22 Insurance & Risk Management {continued)

Although the Group has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct
obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to
reinsurance ceded, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations
assumed under such reinsurance agreements,

(c) Reinsurance limits

The table below presents the concentration of insured benefits across five bands per
individual life assured. The benefit insured figures are shown gross and net of the
reinsurance contracts described above.

The benefits assured distributed by retained amounts and by reinsured amounts are

shown below:
2023
Band Total Tuotal Total
Amount Amount Amount
Reinsured Retained
000 000 000 000
- 250 6,939.388 4 538,948 2,400,440
251 - 500 464,325 324,782 135,543
301 - 1000 83,608 67,252 16,447
1001 — 3,000 523717 48,336 4,041
3,001 and above 5,000 4,880 120
7,544 TER 4,984,108 2,560,591
2022
Band Tatal Total Total
Amount Amount Amount
Reinsured Retained
E'000 Foon S'000 5000
0-230 T.205401 3.004.076 2,291,325
251 - 500 82,331 506.080 176,251
301 1,000 T0.620 52,462 2,158
1001 — 3,000 43,782 40.086 3,698
3,001 and above 5,000 4,880 120
2.097.134 5,617,584 2479 550)
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22 Insurance & Risk Management (continned)
(d)  Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cavse a financial loss for
the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk arises on reinsurance assets,
Investment securities and insurance receivables.

Management of credit risk
Reinsurance

Reinsurance is placed with high rated counterparties and concentration of risk is avoided by
following policy guidelines in respect of counterparties” limits that are set each year and are
subject to regular reviews. At each year end., management performs assessment of
creditworthiness of reinsurers to update reinsurance purchase strategy and ascertains suitable
allowance for impairment of reinsurance assets.

Investment securities

The Group limits its exposure by setting maximum limits of portfolio securities with a single
issuer or group of issuers. The Group also only makes use of institutions with high
creditworthiness.

Insurance receivables

The credit risk in respect of customer balances, incurred on non-payment of premiums or
contributions, will only persist during the grace period specified in the policy document on
the expiry of which the policy is either repaid up or terminated. Commission paid to
intermediaries is netted off against amounts receivable from them to reduce the risk of
doubtful debts.

An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other security enhancements held against
financial assets is nil.

Exposare to credit risk

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or
any Group of counterparties having similar characteristics. The carrying amount of financial
assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date was:
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22 Insurance & Risk Management (continued)

(d)  Credit Risk (continued)
Carrying Amounts

2023 2022
3 3

At fair value through profit and loss investmenis 95,725,994 133,507,583
Accounts receivables:

(1) Insurance receivables 36.452 440 22,400 260
(i) Other receivables 7,643,947 3516467
Reinsurance assets 78,570,311 75,286,306
Cash and cash equivalents 44,945,391 18,541,110

263,340,083 253,260,726

Exposure fo Credit Fisk
March 31, 2023

A JLEWY BA Mot Rated Total

b 3 ¥ b b
Financial agsets:
Fair value through profit and loss
investments - 23,989,021 1,329,166 70,407,807 05, TE5,9%4
Cash - - - 44,545 351 44 945 391
Reinsurance assels 78,570,311 - - - TRA570,311
Ingurance and other receivables
: Meither past due nor impaired - - - 21,857,110 22357110
Fazt due but not mmpaired - - - 31,308,599 21,308,359
Individually impaited - - - - -

78570311 23,989,021 1,329,166 159 518,907 263 AT 405

Allowance for inpairment - - - (67.322) (67.322)
Carrying amount Note 11 T8,570.311 23,989,021 1,329, 166 15945] 385 263,340,083
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22 Insurance & Risk Management (continued)
(d}  Credit Risk (continued)

Exposure to Credit Risk
March 31, 2022

A BAA BA Mot Rated Total

& ¥ b ¥ b
Finamcial assets:
Fair vahue through profit and loss
investments . 27,563,084 12,886,522 93,057,778 133,507,583
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 18,541,110 18,541,110
Ereinsurance assets 75,286,306 - - - 3286306
Insurance and other vgceivables
: Meither past due nor impaired - = - 16,168,847 16,168,847
Past due bul not impaired - - - 9.756,B80 %.756.8B0
Tndividually impaired - - - 26,365 926,365
Gross amount 75,286,306 27,563,284  12,886.522  138.450,580 254,187,091
Allowance for impaioment - - - (926,365) (926.363)
Casrying amount Mote 11 75,286.306 27563284 12,886,522 137,524 615 233,260,726
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22 Imswrance & Risk Management (continued)
(d) Credit Risk (continued)

Impairment losses
The aging of receivables at the reporting date was:

(ross Impairment (ross Impairment

2023 023 2022 2022
b b b ]
Mot past due 15,211,163 - 0,420 837
Past due 46 — 50 days 10,642,767 - 8,374,202 -
Past due 91 — 130 days 8,172,694 - 3,365,656 385427
Past due 181 — 360 days 1.938.061 &30 515 340,938

hore than one year 555,077 67322 - -
36.510.762 67322 22,409 260 026,365

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of receivables during the
period/vear was as follows:

2023 2022
$ §
Balance at the beginning and end of the vear/period - 926,365

() Liguidity

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
azsociated with financial liabilities,

Muanagement of liguidity risk
The major Liquidity risk confronting the Group is the daily calls on its available cash resources
in respect of claims ariging from insurance contracts and the maturity of investment securities.
The Group sets limite on the minimum portion of maturing funds available to meet such calls
and on the minimum level of borrowing facilities that should be in place to cover claims at
unexpected levels of demand.
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22 Tnsuwrance & Risk Management (continued)
(e)  Liguidity (continued)

Muanagement of lguidity risk (continued)

The following tables analyse the insurance and financial liabilities and the reinsurance and finaneial
assels of the Groop into relevanl maturity groupings based on the remaining period to the contractual
or expected maturity date.

Insurance and Financial Carrying WNo Stated Within Maturing Over five
Liabilities a5 at March 31, Amonnt Maturity 0NE yeiar between one Years
2023 to five years
Bank overdraft 1,727 249 - 1,727 849 - -
Boimowings 7,500,000 - 7,500,000 - -
Insurance contmacts 140,145 294 - 140,145,294 = =
Accounts payabla 31,083,885 - 31,083,885 - -
Defeired tax hiability 14590017 - 1,499,017 & -
Taxation payable 2,621,809 - 2,621.809 - -
175,150,004 - 175,350,004 - -
Reingurance and Financial Carrving No Stated Within Maturing Owver five
Assets as at March 31, 2023 Amonni Maiurity g year between one Fears
to five years
Invesiment securilies 85,723,994 40,730,048 763,136 27,929,251 10,770,266
Investment property 18,076,762  18.076.762 - - -
Reinsurance agsets TR,570.311 - 78,570,311 - -
Accounts receivables 44,098,387 - 44,098,387 - -
Due from related parties 1,681,821 - 1,681,821 - -
Cagh and cash squivalents 44945391 44,945,351

233.098.666 105,752,199 125,113,655 27.528.251  10.770.266
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22  TInsurance & Risk Management (continued)
(&) Liguidity (continned)

Management of Hguidity risk fcontinued)

Insurance and Financial Carryving No Stated Within one Maturing Over five
Liabilitics as at March 31, Amount Magurity year between one years
2022 to five years
Bank overdraft 2,811,388 - 2.811.388 - -
Boiiowings 1,200,000 - 1. 200.000 - -
Insurance gontracts 137,808,531 - 137 808.531 - -
Accounts payable 33,362,183 - 35,362.183 - 2
Taxation payable 2,464,203 - 2.464.293 - -
175,633,007 - 175,635,007 - -

Reinsurance and Financial
Assets as at March 31, 2022

Investrent securities 153,507,383 B0.D69.558 g 33,933,151 18,584,774
Investment property 13,627,368  13.627.368 - - -
Reingurance sssels 75.286,306 - 75.286.306 - -
Acecounts receivables 25.925.727 - 25.925.727 - -
Due from related parties 1.908.733 - 1.903.733 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 18541110 - 18.,541.110 - -

268,796,827  94.597,026  121,661.876 33,953,151 18,584,774

(f) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices. such as foreign exchange rates and interest
rates, will adversely affect the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments.

fa) Interest Rates

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate risk
arises on interest-bearimg financial instruments recognized in the statement of financial
position.
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22  Insurance & Risk Management (continued)
iy Marker Risk (continyed)
() Lrterest Rates (continged)

Management of intevesi rote visk

The Investment Committee comprises one non-executive member and two executive members.
The commiliee is responsible for reviewing the investment poitfolio of the Group and setling the
general direction ag to the types of investrnents that would comprise the Group’s portfolia. The
aim is to balapce the risk and remens with an objective of maximizing investment income.

At the reporting dare the interest rate profile of the interest-bearing financial instruments was:

Carrying Amounis
2023 2022
£ 5
Fixed rate insiroments
Treasury bills maturing in over 30 days - 2208717
Cash and cash equivalents 20,265,391 2,566,078
Bonds 39 462,653 49331916
59 728 044 54.106.711
Variable rate instruments
Bonds - -
Cash and cosh equivalents 24,630,000 15,975,052
24 6E0,000 15975032
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22 Insurance & Risk Management {continued)
(71 Marier Risk fconfinued}

() Interest Rates (continued)
Imterest rate sensiivine
Cosh flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instriments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the tspocting date would have increased
{decreased) profit o loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all
other variables. in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2022,

023 2022
Eftect of Profit Effect af Profit
100 bp 100 b 100 bp 100 bp
Increase Diecrease Increaze Decrease
Variable mate instrument - - 6,979 (6.979)

(b} Foreign currency

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or firture cash flows of a finaneial
nstrument will fluctuate because of chanpges in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk
arises on finaneial mstruments that are denommated in a forzign currency, that 15, in g
currency other than the functional curency in which they are measured. The major
foreign currency exposure i3 to the United States Dollags.

Carrying Amounts

Uss EUR TTS CYD
Net position of foreign currency af
Maveh 31, 2023:
Cash and investments 34,013,916 18574352 65,803,611 65,803,611
Net position of foreign currency af
March 31, 2022;
Cash and investments 11482221 182,512 63,178,885 229535552
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22 Insurance & Risk Management (continued)
(f)  Market Risk (continued)
(b) Foreign Currency (continued)

Exchange rates of one United States dollar to the Trimidad and Tobago dollar at year
end was as follows:

2023 2022

¥ b
United States dollar (USD) 6.748 6.758
EURO 74599 7.811
GBP 8.543 9173
GYD 0.033 0.032
IMD 0.044 0.043

Currency risk sensitivity analysis

A 5% (2019: 5%) weakening of the Trinidad dollar against the currencies held would
have resulted in an additional credit (charge) to profit or loss by the amounts shown
as follows:

2023 2022
$ $
Effects on profit (TT$) (1.808,936)  (4.387.229)

This analysis assumes that all other variables,in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2023,
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22

Insurance & Risk Management (continued)

(2)

()

Price Risk {continued)

Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all instruments traded in the
market. Management monitors the mix of debt and equity securities in its investment
portfolio based on market expectations. The primary goal of the Group’s investment
strategy is to maximise investment returns.

A 10% (2022:10%) increase or decrease in the bid price at the reporting date would
cause an increase or an equal decrease respectively in equity of $4,547 873 (2022:
$10.696.616).

Capital Management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(i) To comply with capital requirements set by the regulators of the insurance
industry within which the Group operates;

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(ii) To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide returmns tor shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders; and

(iii) To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

The Group’s main regulator is the Central Bank of Trinidad and Tobago (CBTT) which
monitors the capital requirements for the Group.

Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of the policyholders and
monitor the Group closely to ensure that it is safisfactorily managing affairs for the
benefit of the policyholders. At the same time, the regulators are also interested in
ensuring that the Group maintains an appropriate solvency position to meel unforeseen
liabilities arising from economic shocks or natural disasters,
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23 Related Parties Transactions
(a)  Fdentity of Related Party

The Group has a related party relationship with its parent and with its directors and
executive officers.

(b} Related party transactions

A number of transactions have been entered into with related parties in the normal
course of business

2023 2022
3 5
Expenses
Management fees expense 1,012,500 1,012,500
Directors” fees 363,340 358210
Advertising expense 405,000 405,000
1,782,840 1,805,710
Income
Insurance premiwm income 07,620 97.620
97,620 97,620
(c) Transactions with key management personnel
The key management personnel compensation is as follows:
2023 2022
¥ §
Short-term employee benefits
Emoluments 4243733 5,303,622
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24 Dividends Paid

The following dividends were declared and paid by the Group during the respective

period/year.
2023 2022
b3 b
Final quarter dividend (prior year) 3274738 1,630,625
First quarter dividend - 4,544,301
Second quarter dividend 535,340 2,158.770
Third quarter dividend 1,402,343 976,050
Fourth quarter dividend 2,778,964 2,202,325
7,991,385 11,513,071
Cents per share
2023 2022
3 $
Final quarter dividend (previous year) 0.281 0.136
First quarter dividend 0.000 0.396
Second quarter dividend 0.046 0.185
Third quarter dividend 0.120 0.084
Fourth quarter dividend 0.238 0.189

25 Subsequent Events

The Group has evaluated events occurring after 31 March 2023, in order to assess and determine the
need for potential recognition or disclosure in these consolidated financial statements. There were no such
events which required such recognition or dislosure up to the date that these separate financial
statements were available to be issued.
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26 Ihe Adoption of IFRS 17 (Insurance Contracts) and [FRS 9 (Financial Assets)

A. Estimated impact of the adoption of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9
The Group will restaie comparative information on adoption of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9. The
Group has assessed the estimated impact that the initial application of IFRS 17 [see (B)] and
IFRS 9 [see (C)] will have on its financial statements. Based on the measurement mode]
selected and the assessments undertaken to date, an increase to the Group's equity of
$6.123.257 is expected because of the implementation of both standards.

B. IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and became effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early adoption permitted.

L. Identifying contracts in the scope of IFRS 17

IFRS 17 establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of insurance contracts and reinsurance contracts.

When identifying contracts in the scope of IFRS 17, in some cases the Group will have to
assess whether a set or series of contracts needs to be treated as a single contract and whether
goods and services components have to be separated and accounted for under another standard.
For insurance and reinsurance coniracts, the Group does not expect significant changes arising
from the application of these requirements.

i, Level of ageregation

Under IFRS 17, insurance coniracts are aggregated into groups for measurement purposes.
Groups of contracts are determined by first identifving portfolios of contracts, each comprising
contracts subject to similar risks and managed together. Contracts in different product lines are
expecled to be in difTerent portfolios. Each portfolio is then divided into annual cohorts (Le.,
by year of issue) and each annual cohort into three groups:

. any contracts that are onerous on initial recognition;

. any contracts that, on initial recognition, have no significant possibility of becoming
onerous subsaquently; and

. any remaining contracts in the annual cohort.
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26 The Adoption of IFRS 17 (Tnsurance Contracts) and IFRS 9 (Financial Assets) {continued)

iL. Level of aggregation (continued)

When a contract is recognised, it is added to an existing group of contracts or, if the contract
does not qualify for inclusion in an existing Group, it forms a new group to which furture
contracts may be added. Groups of reinsurance contracts are established such that each group
comprises a single confract.

ifi. Contract boundaries

Under IFRS 17. the measurement of a group of contracts includes all of the future cash flows
within the boundaiy of each contract in the group. Compared with the current accounting, the
Group does not expect that for any of its issued contracts the IFRS 17 contract houndary
requirements will change the scope of cash flows to be included in the measurement of
existing recognised contracts, as opposed to future unrecognised contracts. The period covered
by the preminms within the contract boundary is the *coverage period’, which 1s relevant when
applying a number of requirements in IFRS 17.

Insurance contracts

For insurance comtracts, cash flows are within the contract boundary if they arise from
substantive rights and obligations that exist during the reporting period in which the Group
can compel the policyholder to pay premiums or has a substantive obligation to provide
services (insurance coverage). A substantive obligation to provide services ends when:

. The Group has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the particular policvholder and
can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects those reassessed risks: or

. The Group has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the portfolio that contains the
contract and can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects the risks of that portfolio. and
the pricing of the premiums up to the reassessment date does not take into account risks that
relate to periods after the reassessment date,

The Group primarily issues contracts for a coverage period of one year or less. It has issued
contracts for mortgage indemnity and contractors all risks that are for coverage periods of
more than twelve months. The contractors all risk policies that have a coverage period of
more than one year contributes income that is not material to the financial statements.
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26 The Adoption of IFRS 17 {Insurance Contracts) and IFRS ¥ (Financial Assets) (continued)

Reinsurance contracts

For reinsurance conftracts, cash flows are within the contract boundary if they arise from

substantive rights and obligations that exist during the reporting period in which the Group is

compelled to pay amounts to the reinsurer or has a substantive right to receive services from

the reinsurer. A substantive right to reccive services from the reinsurer ends when the

reinsurer:

. has the practical ability to reassess the risks transferred to it and can set a price or level
of benefits that fully reflects those reassessed risks; or

. has a substantive right to terminate the coveragg.

Some of the Group’s quota share reinsurance contracts cover underlying contracts issued
within the annual term on a risk-attaching basis and provide umilateral rights to both the
Group and the reinsurer to terminate the attachment of new underlying contracts at any time by
giving three months’ notice to the other party. Currently, the measurement of these reinsurance
contracts generally aligns with that of the underlying contracts and considers only underlying
contracts already ceded at the measurement date. However, under IFRS 17 cash flows arising
from underlying contracts expected to be issued and ceded after the measurement date, in
addition to those arising from onderlving contracts already ceded, mav be within the
boundaries of the reinsurance contracts and may have to be considered and estimated in their
measurement.

v Measurement — Overview

The Premium Allocation Approach (PAA) is an optional simplified measurement model in
IFRS 17 that is available for insurance and reinsurance contracts that meet the eligibility
criteria.

The Group expects that it will apply the PAA to all contracts because the following criteria
are expected to be met at inception.

. Insurance contracts and loss-occurring reinsurance contracts: The coverage period of
gach contract in the Group is one vear or less.
. Risk-attaching reinsurance contracts: The Group reasonably expects that the resulting

measurement of the asset for remaining coverage would not differ materially from the result of
applving the accounting policies described above.
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26 The Adoption of IFRS 17 (Insurance Coniracts) and IFRS 9 (Financial Assets) (continued)

On initial recognition of each group of general insurance contracts, the carrying amount of the
liability for remaining coverage is measured at the premiums received on initial recognition.
The Group will elect to recognise insurance acquisition cash flows as expenses when they are
incwrred. Insurance acquisition cash flows arise from the activities of selling, underwriting
and starting a group of contracts that are direc(ly attributable to the portfolio of contracts to
which the group belongs.

Subsequently, the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage is increased by any
further premiums received and decrcased by the amount recognised as insurance revenue for
services provided. The Group expects that the time between providing each part of the services
and the related premiwm due date will be no more than a year. Accordingly, as permitted under
IFRS 17, the Group will not adjust the liability for remaining coverage to reflect the time
value of money and the effect of financial risk.

If at any time before and during the coverage period, facts and circumstances indicate that a
group of contracts is onerous, then the Group will recognise a loss in profit or loss and
increase the liability for remaining coverage to the extent that the current estimates of the
fulfilment cash flows that relaie to remaining coverage exceed the carrying amount of the
liability for remaining coverage. The fulfilment cash flows will be discounted (at current rates)
if the liability for incuired claims is also discounted

The Group will recognise the liability for incurred claims of a group of contracts at the amount
of the fulfilment cash flows relating to incurred claims. The futwe cash flows will be
discounted (at current rates) unless they are expected to be paid in one year or less from the
date the claims are incurred.

All cash flows will be discounted using risk-free yield curves adjusted to reflect the
characteristics of the cash flows and the liquidity characteristics of the contracts. Cash flows
within the boundary of a contract are those that relate directly o the fulfilment of the contract,
including those for which the Group has discretion over the amount or timing, These include
payments to (or on behalf of) policyholders, insurance acquisition cash flows and other costs
that are incurred in fulfilling contracts. Insurance acquisition cash flows and other costs that
are incurred in fulfilling contracts comprise both direct costs and an allocation of fixed and
variable overheads.
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26 The Adoption of IFRS 17 (Insurance Contracts) and IFRS 9 (Financial Asseis) (continued)

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk for a group of contracts, determined separately from
the other estimates, is the compensation that the Group would require for bearing uncertainty
about the amount and timing of the cash flows that arises from non-financial risk.

The Group will apply the same accounting policies to measure a group of reinsurance
contracts. adapted where necessary to reflect features that differ from those of insurance
contracts.

Impact assessment

Although the PAA is similar to the Group's current accounting treatment when measuring
liabilities for remaining coverage, the following changes are expected in the accounting for
general insurance conlracts,

Changes from I[FRS 4 Impact on Equity on transition to [IFRS17T

Under IFRS 17, the Company will discount the Increase
future cash flows when measuring liabilities for

incurred claims, unless they are expected to oceur

in one vear or less from the date on which the claims

are incurred. The Company does not currently

discount such future cash flows.

IFRS 17 requires the fulfilment cash flows to mclude a Decrease
risk adjustment for non- financial risk. This is not
explicitly allowed for currently.

The Group estimates that, on adoption of IFRS 17, the impact of these changes (before tax) is
an increase in the Group's total equity of $6,123.257 at 1 April 2023 and 55,498,823 at
1 April 2022,
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26 The Adoption of IFRS 17 (Insurance Contracts) and IFRS 9 (Financial Assets) (continwed)

Reinsurance contracts

The Group will apply the same accounting policies to measure a group of reinsurance

conftracts, with the following modifications.

The carrying amount of a group of reinsurance contracts at each reporting date is the sum of

the asset for remaining coverage and the asset for incurred claims. The asset for remaining

COVErage comprises

{a) the fulfilment cash flows that relate to services that will be received under the contracts in
future periods and

(b) any discounting for the tithe value of money and

{c) a risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

The Group will measure the estimates of the present value of future cash flows using
assumptions that are consistent with those used to measure the estimates of the present value
of future cash flows for the underlying insurance contracts, with an adjustment for any risk of
non-performance by the reinsurer. The effect of the non-performance risk of the reinsurer is
assessed at each reporting date and the effect of changes in the non-performance risk is
recognised in the insurance service result in profit or loss.

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk will represent the amount of risk being transferred
by the Group to the reinsurer.

Discount rates

The Group will generally determine risk-free discount rates using the observed vield curves
government bond yields. To reflect the liquidity characieristics of the contracts, the risk-free
yield curves will be adjusted by an illiquidity premium. Illiquidity premivms will generally be
determined by comparing the spreads on corporate bonds with the costs of lending with
matching critical terms for the same issuer.
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26 The Adoption of IFRS 17 (Insurance Contracts) and IFRS 9 (Financial Assets) (continued)

Discount rates (continued)

The requirement to measure liabilities for insurance confracts using current discount rates will
be a significant change from the Company's current practice as for its insurance contracts,
does not currently discount firure cash flows.

Risk adjustments for non-financial risk

Risk adjustments for non-financial risk will be determined to reflect the compensation that the
Group would require for bearing non-financial risk and its degree of risk aversion. Given the
short duration of the existing portfolio, an initial rate of 4.47% has been applied. Management
will reassess this assumption during the financial year and adjust as necessary.

To determine the risk adjustments for non-financial risk for reinsurance coniracts, the Group
will apply these techniques both gross and net of reinsurance and derive the amount of risk
being transferred to the reinsurer as the difference between the two results.
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26 The Adoption of IFRS 17 (Insurance Coniracts) and IFRS 9 (Financial Assets) (continued)

Presentation and disclosure

IFRS 17 will significantly change how insurance contracts and reinsurance comtract are
presented and disclosed in the Group’s financial statements,

Under IFRS 17, portfolios of insurance coniracts that are assets and those that are liabilities,
and portfolios of reinsurance contracts that are assets and those that are liabilities, are
presented separately in the statement of financial position. All rights and obligations arising
from a portfolio of contracts will be presented on a net basis; therefore, balances such as
insurance receivables and payables will no longer be presented separately.

Under IFRS 17. amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss are disaggregated into

{a) an insurance service result, comprising insurance revenue and insurance service eXpenses,
and

{b) insurance finance income or expenses. Amounts from reinsurance contracts will be
presented separately.

The separate presentation of underwriting and financial results under IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 will
provide added transparency about the sources of profits and quality of earnings.

Insurance service result

For contracts measured using the PAA, insurance revenue is recognised based on an allocation
of expected premium receipts to each period of coverage. which is based on the passage of
time for insurance contracts, The requirements in IFES 17 to recognise insurance revenue over
the coverage period is in line with the Ciroup’s current practice.
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26 The Adoption of IFRS 17 (Insurance Coniracts) and IFRS 9 (Financial Assets) (continued)

Insurance service result (continued)

Expenses that relate directly to the fultilment of contracts will be recognised in profit or loss as
insurance service cxpenses, generally when they are incurred. Expenses that do not relate
directly to the fulfilment of contracts will be presented ouiside the insurance service resulf.

Amounts recovered from reinsurers and reinsurance expenses will no longer be presented
separately in profit or loss, because the Group will present them on a net basis as "net expenses
from reinsurance contracts® in the insurance service result, but information about these will be
included in the disclosures.

The Group will choose not to disaggregate changes in the nisk adjustment for non-finanecial
risk between the insurance service result and insurance finance income or expenses. All
changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk recognised in profit or loss will be
included in the msurance service result.

Insurance finance income and expenses

Under IFRS 17, changes in the carrying amounts of groups of contracts arising from the effects
of the time value of money, financial 1isk and changes therein are generally presented as
insurance finance income or expenses.

The Group will present insurance finance income or expenses in profit or loss, considering that
the supporting assets will generally be measured at FVTPL .
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26 The Adoption of IFRS 17 {fnsurance Contracts) and IFRS 9 (Financial Assets) (continued)

Disclosure

IFRS 17 requires extensive new disclosures about amounts recognised in the financial
statements, including detailed reconciliations of contracts, effects of newly recognised
contracts as well as disclosures about significant judgements made when applying IFRS 17.
There will also be expanded disclosures about the nature and extent of risks from insurance
contracts and reinsurance contract. Disclosures will generally be made at a more granular
level than under IFRS 4, providing more transparent information for assessing the effects of
contracts on the financial statements.

v. Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 17 will be applied using
a full retrospective approach to the extent practicable. Under the full retrospective approach,
at 1 April 2022 the Group will identify, recognise and measure each group of insurance
contracts and reinsurance contracts as it [IFRS 17 had always been applied.
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